STATE OF ARKANSAS

CFFICE OF PROCUREMENT
ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
700 Main Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72203

RESPONSE PACKET
710-19-1027

CAUTION TO VENDOR

Vendor's failure to submit required items and/or information as specified in
the Bid Solicitation Document shall result in disqualification.



RFQ Response Packet Bid No. 710-19-1027

SIGNATURE PAGE

Type or Print the following information.

'éomp'am'?' ; SOU’H/\{UQS’F F)y‘kmmrsm [ aumsefma%am mn?m-/a‘/wiédi#r (‘ﬁifz“/jﬂ/
Address | 900 Fllansas Blud. J

cty ' [TByartana stete: | A2 [ Zocode: | 77954

Busmess | & Individual U Sole Proprietorship O Public Service Corp
Demgnatnon | [ Partnership [J Corporation 0 Nonprofit

&f Not Applicable O American Indian 0 Asian American [ Service Disabted Veteran
Women Owned OJ African American [0 Hispanic American 1 Pacific Islander American O Women-Owned
Designation®:
- AR Certification # * See Minority and Women-Owned Business Policy

Contact Person: | \(y 1) fYlovi's Tite: : 55(57153;47‘ Llinical Divertos
Phone CA70. 1703 H655 Lard. 724) | Atemate Phone: | 793 §Q Y, 5594
Emat - |vhall@ swacmhe. com

L] YES, a redacted copy of submission documents is enclosed.
O NO, a redacted copy of submission documents is pot enclosed. | understand a full copy of non-redacted submission
documents will be released if requested.

Nofe: If a redacted copy of the submission documents is not provided with Prospective Contractor's response packet, and
neither box is checked, a copy of the non-redacted documents, with the exception of financial data (other than
pricing), will be released in response to any request made under the Arkansas Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).
See Bid Solicitation for additional information.

By signing and submitting a response to this Bid Soficitation, a Prospective Contractor agrees and certifies that they do
not employ or contract with illegal immigrants. If selected, the Prospective Contractor certifies that they will not employ or
contract with illegal immigrants during the aggregate term of a contract.

By checking the box below, a Prospective Contractor agrees and certifies that they do not boycott Israel, and if selected,
will not boycott Israel during the aggregate term of the contract.

[ Prospective Contractor does not and will not boycott fsrael.

An official authorized to bind the Prospective Contractor to a resultant contract must sign below,

The signature below signifies agreement that any exception that conflicts with a Requirement of this Bid Soficitation will
cause the Prospective Contractor's bid to be disqualified:

Authorized Signature: Title: KZ/@
Use Ink Onfjf

Printed/Typed Name: DAnn . Y’ﬁ?’n le ‘7 Date: %’{é/w
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RFQ Response Packet Bid No. 710-19-1027

SECTION 1 - VENDOR AGREEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

s Apy requested exceptions to iterns in this section which are NON-mandatory must be declared below or as an atfachment o this

page. Vendor must clearly explain the requested exception, and should fabel the request to reference the specific salicitation item
nurmber fo which the exception applies.

»  Exceplions fo Requirements shall cause the vendor’s proposal to be disqualified.

By signature below, vendor agrees to and shall fully comply with all Requirements as shown in this section of the bid
solicitation. Use Ink Only

Vendor Name:

.'/HlW‘-"S’T. 4}1 k}ﬂ«ﬂf/}—)’ @&lun-;’g/) e %ﬂ%_( Date: é/,fﬁ /q}

Authorized Signature; W %/m/fz Title;

Print/Type Name: DH:M/ f'fLﬂ-/f /)_/
{ ad
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RFQ Response Packet Bid No. 710-19-1027

SECTION 2 - VENDOR AGREEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

Any requested exceptions to fferms in this section which are NON-mandatory must be declared below or as an attachment to this

page. Vendor must clearly explain the requested exception, and should Jabel the request to reference the specific solfcitation item
number to which the exceplion applies.

*  Exceptions fo Requiremnenis shall cause the vendor’s proposal fo be disqualified.

By signature below, vendor agrees to and shall fully comply with all Requirements as shown in this section of the bid
solicitation. Use Ink Only

: Shothwerd  AikdnSay (o SASElAg )
Vendor Name: - Mhondsst %{4/%% df?t._ Date: %_5/‘_/7

Authorized Signature: M;\T\\ Title: P e

Print/Type Name: Dﬂ?—n y 5’%&4})
/ T
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RFQ Response Packet Bid No. 710-19-1027

SECTION 3.4,5 - VENDOR AGREEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

Exceptions to Requirements shall cause the vendor's proposal fo be disqualified.

By signature balow, vendor agrees to and shall full

y comply with all Requirements as shown in this section of the bid
solicitation. Use fnk Only

_ Sacfyf west HVEmins  Cava sefrvg & ) —
Vendor Name: Pt | //1‘}4— /f'ﬁx /7[-,&_ Date: ?‘ 5 v

‘ . _D Title: M&’
D‘W’Im( f%?ﬂ)e Li,

Authorized Signature:

Print/Type Name:
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RFQ Response Packet Bid No. 710-19-1027

PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS FORM

« Do not include additional information relafing fo subcontractors on this form or as an aftachment fo this form.

PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR PROPOSES TO USE THE FOLLOWING SUBCONTRACTOR(S) TO PROVIDE SERVICES.

Type or Print the foh'owr'ng‘ _fr}formatfon

Sijbéohtfactorfs Compa ame : - Clty,State,Zi? =

IZfPROSPECTlVE CONTRACTOR DOES NOT PROPOSE TO USE SUBCONTRACTORS TO
PERFORM SERVICES.

By signature below, vendor agrees to and shall fully comply with all Requirements related to subcontractors as shown in
the bid solicitation.

Vendor Name:

A 2 | f
A TR et R gases  (Cooselinmg
Eortsl e 11 (oprten. Ll T

Authorized Signature: Title: é 523
ra
Print/Type Name: \
J}"nn;/ /(’é‘l:’?/@;/
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RFQ Response Packet Bid No. 710-19-1027

Attachment G. has the Minimum Qualification Checklist that your RESPONSE will be checked against. You must submit
all information requested so that information can be verified. Failure to submit the requested information may cause your
response to be disqualified. Do not complete and return this form with your response. Itis for information only.

INFORMATION FOR EVALUATION

* Provide a response to each item/question in this section. Vendor may expand the space under each item/question fo
provide a complete response.

» Do not include additional information if not pertinent lo the itemized request.
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Attachment G

" Attached is the Minimum Qualification Checklist that your RESPONSE will be checked against. You must submit all
information requested so the below information can be verified. Failure to submit the requested information may cause
your response fo be disqualified. Do not complete and return this form with your response, It is for information only.

Vendor must submit satisfactory documentation in response to the request below to be considered.

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)
710-19-1027
THERAPEUTIC FOSTER CARE (TFC)
MINIMUM QUALIFICATION CHECK LIST

vendor | yuthigest Arbansas (unse Zf'mJa and Nental Health (enter

Reviewer: Date:
SUBMITTED
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS YES NO COMMENTS

A. Must meet the foster care requirements outlined in
Minimum Licensing Standards for Child Weifare

Agerncies.

For verification purposes, Vendor must submit Vendor's
Child Welfare Agency license obtained from the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS), Division of Child
Care and Early Childhocod Education (DCCECE).

B. Must be licensed as a Child Welfare Agency as set out in
the Minimum Licensing Standards for Child Welfare

Agencies.

For verification purposes, Vendor must submit Vendor's
Child Weifare Agency license obtained from the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS), Division of Child
Care and Early Childhood Education (DCCECE).

C. Must be able to provide trauma informed mental health
services for clients placed in the program.

For verification purposes, vendor must submit a narrative
outlining their ability to provide trauma informed mental
health services and the ability to provide twenty-four (24)-
hour, seven (7) days a week mobile crisis intervention.




MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

SUBMITTED

YES

NO

COMMENTS

D. Must have the ability to provide twenty-four (24)-hour,
seven (7) days a week mobile crisis intervention in the
home and community setting.

For verification purposes, vendor must submit a narrative
outlining their ability to provide trauma informed mental
health services and the ability to provide twenty-four (24)-
hour, seven (7) days a week mobile crisis intervention.

Passed Failed




State of Arkansas
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT
700 South Main Street
P.O. Box 1437 / Slot W345
Little Rock, AR 72203

ADDENDUM 1

DATE: March 12, 2019
SUBJECT: 710-19-1027 Therapeutic Foster Care

The following change(s) to the above referenced Competitive Bid for DHS has been made as
designated below:

Change of specification(s)
Additional specification(s)
X Change of bid submission/opening date and time
Canceliation of bid
Other

BID OPENING DATE AND TIME

Bid opening date and time has changed to April 8, 2019, 2:00 PM

Revise Section 1.29 Schedule of Events:

Date and time for Opening Bids, April 8, 2019, 2:00 PM CST

The specifications by virtue of this addendum become a permanent addition to the above referenced Invitation for
Bid.

FAILURE TO RETURN THIS SIGNED ADDENDUM MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR BID.

if you have questions, please contact the buyer Margurite.al-ugdah@dhs.arkansas.gov
or 501-682-8743.

. /o515

Vendof Signatur Date

%Uﬂwﬁ%f /’%&A /ﬁ[);/\ sel] g ¢= /%ff’?’féﬂ / /74-‘4/7[‘4

Company




State of Arkansas
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT
700 South Main Street
P.O. Box 1437 / Slot W345
Little Rock, AR 72203

ADDENDUM 2

DATE: March 19, 2019
SUBJECT: 710-19-1027 Therapeutic Foster Care

The following change(s) to the above referenced Competitive Bid for DHS has been made as
designated below:

X Change of specification(s)
Additional specification(s) 1
Change of bid submission/opening date and time §
Cancellation of bid
Cther

BID OPENING DATE AND TIME

Bid opening date and time

Section 2.2B

HANGES TO REQUIREMENTS

Delete: For verification of the requirements specified above (A & B), Vendor must submit Vendor's Therapeutic
Foster Care Placement Child Welfare Agency license obtained from the Arkansas Department of
Human Services (DHS), Division of Child Care and Early Childhood Education (DCCECE).

Add: For verification of requirements specified above (A & B), Vendor must submit one of the following:
1) Vendor's Therapeutic Foster Care Placement Child Welfare Agency License obtained from the
Arkansas Department of Human Services (DHS) Division of Child Care and Earty Childhood
Education (DCCECE), or

2} A copy of the application for licensure.

Vendor's license must be approved by the DCCECE board by June 1, 2019 in order to be awarded a
contract.

Revised Attachment G



The specifications by virtue of this addendum become a permanent addition to the above
referenced Invitation for Bid.

FAILURE TO RETURN THIS SIGNED ADDENDUM MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR
BID. ' ,

If you have questions, please contact the buyer Margurite.al-ugdah@dhs.arkansas.gov
or 501-682-8743.

L%W” - -5 - v

Vendor Signature Date

I <. Hoses = Al Cronce | g ¥ Hertn\ Herlth Chr

Compény




State of Arkansas
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT
700 South Main Street
P.O. Box 1437 / Slot W345
Little Rock, AR 72203

ADDENDUM 3

DATE: March 26, 2019
SUBJECT: 710-19-1027 Therapeutic Foster Care

The following change(s) to the above referenced Competitive Bid for DHS has been made as
designated below: -

X Change of specification(s)
Additional specification(s)
Change of bid submission/opening date and time
Cancellation of bid
Other

BID OPENING DATE AND TIME

:i%fCHANGE SPECIFIGATIONS

Attachment C: Performance-Based Contracting

B. Delivery of Services

5.9: Delete: “A physician and other personnel involved in the client's case will review each plan of care at least
every ninety (90) days. The plan of care must be revised to reflect resuits of the review conducted
as required herein,”

Add:  “Contractor shall review the plan at least semi-annually and shall update the plan to

refiect the child’s progress.”

Insert: #9

Service Criteria:

Contractor shall maintain records of the TFC internal client specific treatment plan of care. This plan may be very
similar to or mirror the youth’s PCSP,
Documentation shall at a minimum reflect the following:

A. Treatment plan developed in accordance with recommendations made by a physician or other licensed
professionals involved in the care of that client



B. Any revisions of the Treatment plan
Acceptable Performance:

Acceptable perfformance is defined as one hundred percent {100%) compliance with Service Criteria and
Acceptable Performance Standards at all times throughout the contract term as determined by DHS.

Damages:

1st Incident: A Corrective Action Plan, acceptabie to DHS, will be due to DHS within ten (10) business days of the
request.

2nd incident: A ten percent (10%) penalty may be assessed in the following months’ payments to the Vendor for
each thirty (30) day period the Vendor is not in full compliance with these Service Criteria. The ten percent (1 0%)
penalty shall be calculated from the total payment for the identified month in which the deficiency took place.

The total of all damage credits in any given month shall not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly
invoice unless a third incident occurs for any of the Service Criteria.

3rd incident: DHS reserves the right to impose additional penalties including but not limited to: withholding
payment on future invoices until Vendor is in full compliance, a substandard Vendor Performance Report
maintained in DHS' Vendor file, and contract termination.

If you have questions, please contact the buyer Margurite.al-ugdah@dhs.arkansas.gov
or 501-682-8743.

e Ralra

Vendor Signature \ Date

ﬁ‘f’?l-ltlu’é?/' /%fk @ﬂdﬂsﬂé/m? (f—%"/t‘llﬂ-’ f‘/lﬁf#L\ C’(‘ﬂ-\

Cdmpany
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SW ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.

Policy Area: Human Resources Subject: Equal Employment Opportunity
Effective Date: 7-21-16 Policy #: HR-1

Revision Date: /-21-16 Page # ! of 1

Additional Authority: C4RF ] 1 FEOC Review Date: /-21-16, 9-21-17

The Center is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Empioyer and its personnel are governed by the

following: '
» Civil Rights Act of 1964

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972

Fair Labor Standards Act, 1974 Amended

The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967

An Affirmative Action Plan

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Amended 1976

Vietnam Era Veteran Assistance Act of 1974

Presidential Executive Order, 1928

Equal Pay Act of 1963

Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993,

Implicit in the Center's Equal Employment Opportunity Policy is the Center's right to disregard race,
color, sex, creed, age, national origin, sexual preference and handicap in requiring employees to meet
satisfactory performance standards.
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Southwest Arkansas Counseling & Mental
Health Center, Inc.

Therapeutic Foster Care

The Therapeutic Foster Care (TFC) Program is part of the Southwest Arkansas Counseling &

Mental Health Center (SWACMHC) located in Texarkana, Arkansas. Therapeutic Foster Care

" provides family-centered, home-based treatment for children in foster care that have been

~ diagnosed by a mental health professional as being severely emotionally disturbed. Therapeutic
foster care provides a healthy family environment, normal life experiences, and special
interventions which allow children and adolescents to overcome their problems. Our program
trains the foster parents to become co-therapists in the home by providing specialized trauma-
informed, evidence-based therapeutic training in a home-based setting in order to provide the
child in their care with a permanent home. We provide the children placed in our homes a
healthy family environment, normal life experiences, and special interventions which allow them
to overcome their problems. The foster parents are specially trained to understand the effects
abuse and neglect have on children and specific parenting techniques to assist them in learning to
form healthy and appropriate attachments, The structure and nurture provided to these children

- from their foster parents help to foster proper development of the brain, social skills, and
improve any developmental delays as the result of neglect / abuse. Our foster parents make sure
the child(ren) placed in their care receive proper medical, dental, and vision care. All of the

' children in our program also receive individualized mental health services deigned to meet their

unique needs. We work closely with the foster parents, DCFS, and PASSE Care Coordinators to

develop treatment plan goals and objectives that are strength-based, client and family focused,

and that will help stabilize the children’s behavior. Our overall goal with the program is to help

stabilize any child(ren) placed to the point hey can reach permanency. Our foster parents are

involved in family sessions and meet regularly with all members of the treatment team to ensure

the child’s needs are being met.

Although each case is handled individually, clients remain in therapeutic foster care until
they may be placed in a permanent setting. The goal for every client in therapeutic foster care is
to be reunited with his or her own family, or be placed in an alternative permanent living
arrangement as outlined in their case plan by DCFS. Therapeutic foster parents participate in
clients’ permanency planning by working with birth/legal families and DCFS, helping clients
utilize the trauma skills taught in therapy, and preparing themselves and the client for eventual
placement outside the foster home.

Therapeutic foster parents are an integral part of the program’s services to clients and
their families. They act as part of the client’s treatment team and provide interventions in
conjunction with mental health and child welfare professional. Therapeutic foster parents receive
professional training, consultation and support from the program. They provide treatment to their



clients primarily by allowing them to live in the supportive, “normal” family situation. They
teach children and adolescents how to live positively and productively in their home, school and
interpersonal relationships. We train our parents to work with each child to increase their daily
living skills and to reduce the negative symptoms / behaviors exhibited. In addition, when
children reach the age of 14, we enroll them in life skills classes through the assistance of the
Department of Children and Family Services (DCFS) to help them learn independent living skills
and prepare them for life after graduation. Once the child reaches 18 and is close to graduating,
our parents and the child’s treatment team work with the child and DCEFS in transition planning
to help the child plan for college, military, or independent living

Program Goals

Our TFC program’s mission statement is to provide love nurture, and healing to children in need.
Our goal is to assist and help children placed in our program to reach and maintain stability in a
home-based setting in order to help them reach a place of permanency. Reunification or
placement with the child(ren)’s biological family is always our goal as long as reunification or
fictive kin placement remains a case plan goal through DCFS. If parental rights have been
terminated and no biological family member is able to care for the child(ren), we focus our goal
on adoption. One of the most impactful objectives to reach this goal is the training of our foster
parents. We train our foster parents to be co-therapists in the home. Through trauma training,
foster parents learn on a therapeutic level why children diagnosed with a Serious Emotional
Disturbance (SED) behave the way they do. Our parents are irained to respond to their core
emotional needs in order to reduce the child's behavioral and emotional issues so the child can be
transitioned to a place of permanency. '

We have developed a Parent Assessment tool we will be using twice a year to assess the TFC
parent's ability to meet each child's emotional, behavioral, and educational needs. The Parent
Assessment tool is in a Likert type scale and provides room for recommendations for further
parenting training as well as strengths of the parent(s). In addition to the Parent Assessment tool,
we are also in the process of developing an assessment tool for the parents to asses our ability as
a program to meet their needs in regards to the children and support the family as a whole. In
this way we ensure the child's needs and treatment goals are being met and we as a program are
providing the right amount of training to our parents. '

In addition of the assessment tools we also use a variety of evidence-based tools to measure each
child's progress based on the behaviors observed. Several evidence based measurement tools are
used based on the report of symptoms. Based on evidence-based indicators and frequent reviews
of treatment plan goals, we are able to measure the functioning level of the children in our care.
Specific evidence-based measurement tools are used to obtain a baseline of the child’s behavior.
A minimum of every three to six months we meet with the child and foster family and review the
treatment plan goals and objectives and their progress thus far. All measurement tools gathered
at the beginning of treatment are re-administered to determine any progress. If no progress is
made or if behavior has regressed, the treatment team and foster family re-evaluate and make
changes to the treatment plan. Changes could include increasing family and individual therapy,
changing their goals to a more obtainable goal, changing medication, changing therapeutic



techniques, or educating foster parents on spec:1ﬁc parenting techniques to improve overall
stability.

Services

The services we provide for the children placed in our program are designed to increase and
maintain stability. Treatment for the children is provided within a structured home environment
by trained therapeutic foster parents, who are supervised by the Clinical Director and the TFC
Program Director, SWACMHC’S TFC program currently has 19 Therapeutlc homes and 20
children placed with the capacity to house 36 children.

Each child placed in SWACMHC’s TFC program is provided the following services:

Mental Health Initial Diagnostic Evaluation

Treatment Planning

Psychiatric Evaluation

Therapeutic Services (including individual therapy, family therapy, multi-family therapy,
group therapy, and psychoeducation)

Paraprofessional services

Crisis Interventions and Crisis Stabilizations as needed

24 hour /7 day a week crisis services

In addition, each child will also be offered the following additional services as outlined in
their individual treatment plan:

Medication Management
Summer Programs
Spiritual Activities
Transportation

Court Attendance
Extracurricular Activities
Medical Appointments (as needed and required)
Community Activities
Parent Support Group
Respite
Psycho-educational Testing

Staff delivering services to TFC children will work closely with the foster families and
schedule appointments convenient for the child and the family. We provide services in the clinic, -
in the home, and in the school. In addition our staff work very closely with DCFS, CASA,
Attorney Ad-Litems, and PASSE Care Coordinators to ensure our children receive the best care
possible. We are committed to working as a team and believe everyone needs to work together to
help the children and their families stabilize. Our goal is to wrap services around each child to
improve the support structure available to the child and all those who are impacted by the
experience.



Every child and foster family in our program has access to our staff 24 hours a day, 7 days a
week. Every parent is provided with the SWACMHC after hours hotline number as well as their
QBHP’s cell phone number, therapist cell phone number, TFC Program Director’s cell phone
number, and the TFC Clinical Director’s cell phone number. Every employee within the TFC
program is available to answer the phone 24/7. Parents are trained to call their QBHP first. If
they cannot reach their QBHP, they then call their therapist or the TFC Program Director. If the
parent cannot reach their therapist they then call the TFC Clinical Director. If any family is
experiencing an emergency they can call their QBHP, Therapist, TFC Program Director, TFC
Clinical Director, or access our agency’s emergency after hours hotline. Therapists are on call
24/7 to respond to any emergency needs of the child and family. In addition, foster families have
the care coordinator’s number for their child they can also reach out to if needed. Our QBHPs
and Therapists are trained to respond to emergencies immediately. Our first goal is to keep the
child(ren) safe. We attempt to de-escalate the situation to keep the child in the home and prevent
any psychiatric hospitalization, If we feel the child or family may need more time to stabilize, we
will arrange respite for the night with another one of our TFC families, Following an emergency
situation, we will always make sure to see the child in a follow up session within 24 hours. We
keep psychiatric hospitalization as an absolute last resort. All crisis assessments will be done in
the home of the child unless it is deemed to be unsafe for the child. In that case, the TEC QBHP
will transport the child to the nearest SWACMHC clinic for an assessment by one of the trained
TFC Therapists or on-call SWACMHC Therapist. Primary and secondary DCFS workers will be
notified of any potential hospitalizations immediately and will receive written notification within
24 hours.

Trauma-Informed Care

All of our TFC therapists, QBHPs, and TFC parents are trained in trauma-informed
practices, intervention techniques, and parenting techniques. All staff and TFC parents are
required to complete 32 hours of the Pressley Ridge Treatment Parent Training Curriculum as
well as training in attachment and brain-building techniques. The Pressley Ridge Training is a
competency-based program designed to ensure a high standard of excellence in services for
children in foster care. It is one of the most comprehensive trainings for TFC parents and is
currently listed on California Evidence Based Clearing House. In addition, all staff and parents
receive trauma-specific training. Staff and parents are trained by the TFC Clinical Director or
TFC Program Director in trauma informed care. We provide in-house training 6 times a year
totaling 18 hours of CEUs for each TFC parent. Some examples of our training topics include:
Managing Sexual Behaviors in Children, How Trauma Impacts the Development of the Brain,
Positive Discipline, Love and Logic, Special Time with your Child, Brain Building Techniques,
and Six Core Strengths for Healthy Child Development, and Psychological Trauma.

SWACMHC believes in training therapists in evidence-based therapies and all therapists
working in the TFC program are required to be trained in evidence-based therapies and trauma
therapies. Our TFC Clinical Director, Van Morris, LCSW, is trained in EMDR (Eye-Movement
Desensization Reprocessing), Theraplay, TF-CBT (Trauma Focused Cogntivie Behavioral
Therapy, and has completed training in Sexual Abuse Management Team Training. In addition,
she is a SAFE home study certified and certified as a SAFE home study Supervisor. She has



worked with the agency for 11 years and served as the TFC Program Director for five years from
2011-2016. '

Our current TFC Program Director and TFC therapist, Maya Mason, LMSW, is an Infant
Mental Health certified therapist. She is also trained in EMDR (Eye-Movement Desensization
Reprocessing), Theraplay, TF-CBT (Trauma Focused Cogntivie Behavioral Therapy, and PCIT
(Parent-Child Interaction Therapy). Maya is also SAFE certified and is trained as a SAFE home
study Supervisor. She has been with the agency for the past two years and previously worked as
-a school-based therapsit. Bianca Kisselburg, LAC, RIST, is our programs TFC Therapist. She is
a certified Infant Mental Health therapsit and is trained in Theraplay, CPP (Child Parent
Psychotherapy) and is a registered integrated sandtray therapist. She is currently undergoing
training to be certified in TF-CBT (Trauma Focused Cogntive Behavioral Therapy). She has
worked for our agency since Janaury of 2017.

In addition, we have two full-time QBHPs (Qualified Behavioral Health Providers) and one
part-time QBHP. Each QBHP is trained in our Pressley Ridge TFC Training Curriculum. They
also receive trauma and attachment training prior to working with our children and families. Our
QBHPs receive weekly supervision from the TFC Therapist or TFC Program Director and are
observed monthly in an interaction with a child / family in order to ensure they are utilizing
proper trauma-informed techniques. The QBHPs are expected to receive 24 hours a year of
continuing education and we send our QBHPs to conferences such as the ATTACh conference
so they can learn specific trauma-informed and evidence-based techniques. In addition all-
QBHPs are expected to complete the DVD training series on TBRI (Trust-Based Relational
Intervention) and complete training in either Love and Logic Parenting Techniques or Positive
Discipline. :

Collaborations

SWACMHC’s Therapeutic Foster Care Program collaborates with multiple other organizations
including the Department of Health and Human Services (DHS) DCFS Division, Court
Appointed Special Advocates (CASA), Children’s Advocacy Center (CAC), area schools, and
court officials as appropriate. Our goal is always permanacy placement for the child and
reunification with their family if possible.

While we work with DHS all over the state, we collaborate closely with those in our surrounding
counties (Miller, Little River, Sevier, Hempstead, Howard, and Lafayette). These counties serve
as either primary caseworkers for our kids or secondary caseworkers if the child is referred
outside the catchment area. We send monthly treatment progress notes to the primary and
secondary counties of each child placed in our program informing them of the treatment they
have received and any improvements or regression observed. In addition, our case managers
meet with each child’s caseworker monthly for home visits and we meet quarterly to discuss
each child’s case plan and any issues of concern. The individuals with DHS play an integral part
to our program and the stabilization of each child. They assist us in transportation to family
visits, court, and doctor appointments as necessary. They also assist in supervision of family
visits, staffings, and provide clothing vouchers for the children. DHS provides valuable
information on the child's background and serve as the main contact between us, the child, and



the biological family.

In addition to DHS, we also work closely with CASA and Children's Advocacy Center (CAC).
Most of the children in our program are assigned a CASA worker by the court. Our program
works with the CASA workers to schedule monthly home visits and collaborate before court
about the progress and needs of each child. Many of the children in our homes have been
victims of abuse. Unfortunately due to the trauma they have encountered, not all disclose the
details of their abuse. Once they have adjusted to the structure and routine of the therapeutic
foster home and have gone through trauma specific therapy, many disclose the abuse they have
encountered. We then make a referral to CAC and work with their counselors and forensic
interviewers to make sure each child receives the best possible care.

SWACMHC TFC Program has and will continue to work in conjunction with the Provider-Led
Arkansas Shared Savings Entity (PASSE) Care Coordinators to ensure services are put in placed
based on the needs of the child(ren). TFC Program Therpaists will meet with the child’s
assigned Care Coordinator to help develop the Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP) and
incorporate aspects into the child’s treatment plan. In add1t1on the Care Coordmator will have
access to the child’s therapsit at any time and be given

We coordinate our care with the area schools. The emotional and behavioral problems exhibited
by the children in our program affect their performance in school. Due to the lack of proper
structure and support in their biological home, these children not only have developmental delays .
but are delayed academically as well. Many have Individualized Education Plans (IEP), a 504
plan, or are in need of special education classes or self-contained classroom. Ensuring success in
the school is extremely important as it will boost a child’s self-esteem and confidence which will
reduce negative behavior and outbursts. It also provides them the skills they will need to be
successful later in life. We work very closely with the schools to ensure the child’s educational
needs are being met and assist school personnel in learning basic skills to help reduce disruptions
in the classroom. We have offered trauma-based trainings to school personnel to help them
understand how trauma impacts the brain development of children and provided them with
specific techniques to make their classrooms more trauma-sensitive and informed. Over the past
year we have provided free trainings to the area schools on the brain and trauma, attachment, and
interventions to use to reduce challenging behaviors in children. In addition, all of our foster
parents are trained in understanding the different educational opportunities and aides for children
with disabilities so they can advocate on the child’s behalf. The child’s individual treatment
team works closely with the child, foster parents, and school to ensure each child receives the
right education to help them be successful.

Our program also works with numerous court officials including attorney ad litems, adoption
specialists, judges, and the biological parents’ attorneys as appropriate. We feel it is best for
each child that all indfviduals involved in their care collaborate and discuss concerns so all are on
the same page. We attend quarterly staffings with DHS personnel, attorneys, biological families
of the children, CASA, and the child’s treatement team to discuss the child’s progress and the
progress of the family. All of these agencies are an intergral part to the sustainment of the TFC
program and the stabilization of the child(ren).



Administrative Structure

Southwest Arkansas Cousneling and Mental Health Center, Inc. is goverend by a board of
directors. The Board of Directors make the final decisions regarding policy and proceudres of
SWACMHC and it’s programs. There are currently 17 members on the board of directors
including 2 members from each of the 6 counties that SWACMHC serves. Danny Stanley, the
Executive Driector of SWACMHC, is directly supervised by the board of directors. The board is
updated at monthly meetings of program goals and obejctives including Therapeutic Foster Care.

SWACMHC’s Assistant Clinical Director, Van Morris, serves as the TFC Clinical Director.
She is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the TFC program including, but not
limited to, billing, implementation of treatment planning and service delivery, training of staff,
and placement of the children. She has over 10 years of expereince working with children and
famlies in an outpatient setting and 5 years experience of working in TFC. Van is directly
supervised by SWACMHC’s Clinical Director, Michael Cluts,

The TFC program is run daily by the TFC Program Director, Maya Mason. Maya is
responsible for maintaining licensing compliance, overseeing foster home recruitment and
retention, and ongoing collaboration with various community agencies. The Therapeutic Foster
Care Program Director is responsible for providing targeted therapeutic intervention services to
children in the program that is family-driven and client-guided. She provides therapeutic and
outpatient services to children and families in the program and is responsible for the supervision
of the QBHPs in the program. Responsible for organizing and implementing a plan for staff
development and in-service training and provides supervision and training of the therapeutic
~ foster parents. Maya is directly supervised by the TFC Clinical Director / Assistant Clinical

Director.

The TFC program also has a part-time QBHP, Lauren Crow, who also serves as the program’s
Recruitment and Training Manager. In addition to the QBHP duties, Lauren is responsible for
working with the Program Director in overseeing the recruitment and training of new therapeutic
foster care parents. She works alongside the Director to assist in the placement of children within
the homes, and is responsible for maintaining documentation of foster home records, child’s
files, and written reports with assistance from the Program Director. Lauren is directly
supervised by the TFC Program Director.

The TFC program has two full time QBHPs: Arial Harper and Sarah Langehennng. Their job
~ duties include but are not limited to: responsible for monitoring the direct implementation of the
foster care child’s treatment plan goals and services and is responsible for providing SED clients
with appropriate therapeutic services. Arial and Sarah are directly supervised by the TFC
Program Director.

Lisa Norman is our TFC Secretary. She performs varied and complex assistive tasks and is
considered the liaison between the Center and State agencies for the purposes of reporting
mandatory documentation and statistical information. Duties may include data entry and clerical
functions for Children’s Services Staff as well as recruitment, training and support of
Therapeutic Foster Parents and the TFC program. She is directly supervised by the Assistant
Clinical Director / TFC Clinical Director.



In addition we have an in depth quality assurance structure and process as well as electronic
record keeping. See additional pages for details about these two programs.

There are two main therapists that see the children placed in the TFC program. They are each
assigned to specific families within the program. In this way, the therapist is familiar with the
parents, their style of parenting, and their stregnths / weaknesses. In addition, the parents are
familiar with the therapist's therapeutic approach and expectations. The therapists travel to four
different clinics and see the children in the clinic, the school, and in the home. In this way, we
get a good picture of the child's behavior and interaction with the community, There is one
psychiatrist and two nurse practioners that see the children for medication and evaluations. If
any of our children need further pscyhological testing to determine intellectual functioning,
academic issues, or other behavioral problems, we will refer them to a pscyhologist in the
Texarkana SWACMHC clinic that will test them. In addition we have a secretary and administer
that overlook the program.

We have three highly trained QBHPs (Qualified Behavioral Health Providers) that are assigend a
specific family. The QBHPs work with each family and the child(ren) in their home to support
the child(ren) and the family in their treatment. They work in the schools, home, and community
as well as attend all court hearings, help with training, and intervene in crisis situations. Our
QBHPs never have more than 12 children on their caseload so they can devote the time and
attention needed to these children. At a minimum they must pass all background checks, go
through two weeks of on-the-job training, complete 32 hours of the Pressly Ridge curriculum
training, and complete 24 hours a year of specialized continuing education training. In addition
they are specially trained in Crisis Prevention Intervention techniques, certified in First Aid and
CPR, and educated about the effects abuse and neglect have on the development of the brain and
subsequent behavior issues. All of our QBHPs receive weekly supervision and are sent to
special trainings to further their knowledge of working with high-risk children. Our QBHPs are
trained in the same therapeutic techniques as the therapist so they can understand the why and
how these children behave the way they do and they can assist the therapist and parents in
stabilization of the children.

The key leaders of our program are our highly trained foster parents. Qur foster parents go
through numerous background checks, both state and federal, and must complete 40 hours of the
Pressly Ridge treatment training before a child is placed in their home. In addition, they are
required to complete 24 hours a year of continuing education training that specifically focuses on
helping them understand / handle children diagnosed with serious emotional disturbances and
parenting skills. For the past 10 years our TFC program has been awarded a grant through United
Way of Greater Texarkana. This grant is secifically to pay for the training of our TFC parents.
We have used this grant to send several of our parents to nationally-reknowed trainings such as
the ATTACh Conference, FFTA (Foster Family Treatment Association) National Conference,

- Arkansas Conference on Child Abuse and Neglect, and others. All parents are trained in Crisis
Prevention Intervention techniques and certified in First Aid and CPR. Our TFC parents are a
part of a large support network and often provide respite care to one another. Our TFC program
strongly believes in offering support to our TFC parents. Our patents are key to the success of
our program and as such, we offer a TFC parent support group that is facilitated by our Family



Support Partner. The love and structured homes provide the children with a safe environment
which allows the child(ren) to heal.



Quality Assurance

Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. has a Director of Quality
Assurance and two Quality Assurance Specialists.

The Director of Quality Assurance is responsible for the primary administration of the Center’s
Quality Assurance system by coordinating and implementing specific standards of conduct
regarding the services provided, as well as other general administrative duties, as assigned. The
position requires licensure as a mental health professional in the State of Arkansas and at least
five years of direct service delivery.

Specific duties include the following:

1. Serves as the primary administrator for the Center’s Quality Assurance procedures by
implementing, monitoring, updated and reporting on quality assurance initiatives.

2. Performs implementation duties, including but not limited to: (a) disseminating policy,
(b) receiving and maintaining quality assurance acknowledgement records of employees,
(c) ensuring that clinical, financial and medical records personnel are aware of general
quality assurance requirements, (d) coordinating the Center’s response to lnspection of
Care Reviews and Corrective Action Plans/Implementation, and (e) recommending
mternal changes as needed.

3. Recommends to and develops for the Executive Director an ongoing quality assurance
training program for all employees and representatives of the Center, the specific level of
technical training being determined by an individual’s specific responsibilities — Board
Member, clinical provider, billing and records employee, contractor or general staff.

4. Monitors quality assurance by performing the following duties: (a) conducting
periodic, scheduled and unscheduled quality assurance reviews of service tickets,
billings, medical charts, computer records, logs, etc. (b) evaluate adequacy of internal
quality assurance controls, {c) review and approve all Initial Evaluations and Initial
Evaluation updates (d} report a summary of quality assurance monitoring at least
quarterly to the CQI/QA committee through the Executive Director.

5. Represents the Center as assigned by the Executive Director when external quality
assurance auditors, accreditation entities, regulators, or others review the policies,
procedures and practices of the Center.

6. Chairs the Center’s Utilization Review Committee, monitoring quality assurance of
medical records by performing the following duties: (a) assign peer to peer reviews of
medical records, (b) review the individual reports of each review, (c)address any quality
assurance issues that arise from the review, (d)maintain documentation of such reviews,
(e) report a summary of the Utilization Review findings at least quarterly to the CQI/QA
committee through the Executive Director.

7. Advocates reasonable interpretations of quality assurance requirements, and assists the
Center i the resolution of quality assurance ambiguities and apparent conflicts with other
laws, regulations and accreditation standards.



8. Performs other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and/or the Clinical
Director.

9. Assists the Clinical Director in accreditation efforts.
10. Compliance with all relevant laws, rules, policies and standards of conduct.

The Center also employs two Quality Assurance Specialists who serve on the Quality Assurance
team to ensure service documentation meets all national, state and Center standards for quality
documentation. The Specialist can be a qualified behavioral health professional with a minimum
of one year experience. A bachelor’s degree is preferred but not required. Specific duties
include the following:

(1) Help to ensure the medical necessity is demonstrated in service documentation.
(2) Work to ensure accuracy and completeness of service documentation.

(3) Maintain an accounting of documents found to be in need of improvement in order to
demonstrate conformance to all standards and policies.

(4) Maintain contact with service providers and appropriate supervisors regarding current
quality assurance issues.

(5) Participate in Quality Assurance team meetings on a regular basis.
(6) Perform other quality assurance duties as assigned.

The Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. is committed to a formal
process to develop annual goals and objectives and to ensure continuity of services throughout
the catchment area. To this end, the Center collects data from a variety of sources, including
persons served, staff members, referral sources, community members, and other stakeholders.

Procedure

1. Data collected by the Center is utilized in a way that targets information identifying:

a) the needs of persons served; b) the needs of other stakeholders (staff, community
members and others); and ¢) the business needs of the Center. The data is in a format -
that lends itself to comparative analysis internally, using a variety of parameters and
variables, as well as statewide and nationally.

2. The Center strives to ensure that the data upon which it relies is reliable, valid, complete
and accurate. This is accomplished in a variety of ways: a) The Center has made
considerable investment in an information management system and continuously updates
the products to make sure that it is up-to-date, accurate, reliable and secure; b) The Center
works to ensure that as large a sample as possible is collected from persons served; ¢) The
mailing list for the Community Survey is updated annually to provide for the most
complete coverage of the Center’s service area; and d) The Center subscribes to a
nationally recognized information management service to provide for a consultative data
review and analysis on an ongoing basis. This same system is also ufilized by the Mental
Health Council of Arkansas, of which the Center is a member, and the Arkansas
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Behavioral Health Services. The
Center is an active participant in both of these efforts. The same data system is utilized by a



large number of similar organizations across the United States and readily lends itself to
comparative analysis on that level, as well.

3. Inorder to track progress, identify trends, establish meaningful budgetary plans, provide
for appropriate allocation of resources and meet the needs of the communities it serves,
Center management engages in a series of exercises designed for business function
improvement. As part of this process, the Center:

a Establishes performance goals for the Center, as a whole and for specific
programs.

b. Measures performance indicators related to the goals, as well as other
pertinent indicators that lend themselves to broader performance
analysis.

C. Collects and analyzes data from:

(0 Financtal information

2) Accessibility status reports

(3) Resource allocation

4) Surveys

(5) Risk analysis reports ,

(6} Governance reports (maintained confidentially by the
Executive Director and the governing board)

(N Human resource reports

&) Technology analysis report

©) Environmental health and safety reports
(10)  Field trends '
(I1)  Service delivery system

The Center incorporates the data from the sources into the strategic planning and
annual budget analysis and preparation process. The result is the annual budget, the
Strategic Plan and Performance Review, and the Basic Services Plan, all three of
which are submitted to the Board of Directors for review, final input and subsequent
adoption. :

The Strategic Plan and Performance Review includes a review of business functions and service
delivery. Included in the review is an assessment of effectiveness, efficiency, service access and
satisfaction, as described in the section above. The review also addresses areas needing
improvement, action plans to implement needed improvements and to reach goals, and changes
made to improve performance. The information that is accumulated, and plans that are
subsequently developed, are used to:

a. Affirm that the Center’s mission and core values are being addressed and implemented.

b. Improve the quality of programs and services.

c. Iacilitate decision making and strategic planning by the Center.



Information from the Strategic Plan and Performance Review is prepared in a way that is
meaningful for persons served, staff, and other stakeholders, and is made available to each of
these groups. '

Management works together to ensure that the information regarding performance
improvement is accurate.

4. A variety of information is collected through the Center’s system.

a. Data collected includes characteristics of the persons served.
b. Data is collected at various times, depending on the program. Data is
collected:
(1) at the initiation of services.

2) at program-specific intervals during service provision.

(3) at the termination of services.

4 at approximately 90 days after termination of services.
c. Data collected provides measures of:

(1) the effectiveness of services.

2) the efficiency of service provision.

(3) service access.
4) Satisfaction and other feedback from persons served and other
stakeholders.
d The Center’s data collection system addresses the following

information relative to the indicators, as described below:

(1 to whom the indicator will be applied.

(2) the method of data collection.

(3) Performance goals based on the Center’s history, contractual
performance indicators, and industry benchmarks provided
through the contracted data analysis system and others.

4) Extenuating/influencing factors are considered, and are generally
incorporated into the Strategic Plan and Performance Review.

The Center’s outcomes management system uses a “plain language” outcomes management
questionnaire to gather outcomes data from clients in all programs. More critically, the
outcomes questionnaire was specifically designed with the Center’s clientele in mind, with
questions phrased in such a way as to eliminate confusion for clients and ensure more accurate
and valid responses. The system allows for comparative analysis of behavioral change and/or
functional improvement over time and is standardized in the sense that all programs use the
same basic outcomes management questionnaires. Each program attempts to administer
outcomes management questionnaires at a minimum of four times during and after treatment;
the measurement “points” for collection of outcomes data vary from program to program and
are described as follows:

. All clients complete an outcomes questionnaire at intake, establishing a
baseline for the measure



. The second data collection takes place at varying times, depending on the program in
which each client is being served:

+ Mental Health Outpatient and Substance Abuse Outpatient clients will be
asked to fill out a questionnaire during specified weeks, during which all
clients appearing for service are asked to complete the questionnaire;

+ Psychosocial Rehabilitation clients will be asked to fill out a
questionnaire 6 months into treatment, and every six months thereafier

¢ Substance Abuse residential clients are asked to complete
questionnaires two weeks into residential treatment.

. Another data collection episode occurs when the client’s case is inactivated;

J The last data collection time is ninety days after closure in the MHOP and
Psychosocial Rehabilitation programs and sixty days after closure for the Substance
Abuse Residential program (River Ridge).

. Data regarding the Crisis Intervention program services are collected through input
from the Community Needs Assessment questionnaire, billing and event data,
documentation of crisis services provided, and statewide reporting data collected
through the Division of Behavioral Health Services.

As previously described, data collection is achieved primarily through completion of outcomes
management questionnaires. The historical experience of the Center has been that clients
generally do not want to be contacted by phone and/or in person and, therefore, the Center’s
system relies heavily on the completion of questionnaires that are mailed 1o clients and former
clients. The organization recognizes that the return mail rate for outcomes management
questionnaires 1s “sub-optimal” and, therefore, considers the return rate as an “extenuating
factor” when analyzing/compiling aggregate outcomes management data acquired after
termination of services.

The Center also participates in data collection through the Arkansas Department of Human
Services (DHS) and the Division of Aging, Adult and Behavioral Health Services
(DAABHS). Representatives of DAABHS contact persons served and their families,
accumulate their data and generate an annual “Report Card”.

In order to optimize the Center’s human and fiscal resources, the outcomes management
system also serves as a practical mechanism for conducting an ongoing Community Needs
Assessment. The Center also conducts a bi-annual Staff Quality of Life Survey, which
gathers input from the perspective of the employees and provides management with a -
broader view of the operations of the Center and its services. Results of this survey are
considered by management as part of the strategic planning/budget planning process.
Management analyzes and evaluates information gathered during the staff quality of life
survey and, whenever possible, implements changes in the organization's human resource
practices, personnel policies, and employee compensation packages, as well as policies and
procedures pertaining to effective and efficient service provision.



The Center’s outcomes management system has been standardized across all program lines in
order to facilitate data collection, analysis and dissemination. The system assesses the following
effectiveness measures:

. Quality of Life
. Symptomology
. Functional Status

The system evaluates the following:

s productivity as an efficiency measure;

» client perception of waiting time before appointments as the access measure and;

« client responses to questions regarding their satisfaction with services as the
satisfaction measure.

The outcomes “benchmarks” — as well as performance goals established for each program
and for the Center as a whole — are established by the staff and approved by the
organization’s management.

Although they are established locally, the outcomes benchmarks and performance goals are
based on historical precedent and, more important, are consistent with those used nationally
in the behavioral health field.

The Center performs three types of record reviews: Service-to-Billing Audits, Medical Records
Audits and Utilization Review. Service-to-Billing Audits are performed in conjunction with the
Center’s Corporate Compliance. They are as follows:

1. MEDICAL RECORDS AUDIT

The Medical Records Audit is an ongoing process through which the auditor reviews
approximately 10% of the Center’s medical records each year. Audits are completed monthly at
each site, with a report prepared and presented to the Clinical Director and the CQI/QA.
Committee on a quarterly basis. The audit targets documentation of services and seeks to
determine if required documentation is present and meets Center, accreditation, provider and
other applicable standards and requirements. Records are generally chosen at random, unless a
problem area or particular area of interest has been identified and specific areas, locations, or
personnel are targeted for closer scrutiny.

Reviews are performed by the Medical Records Auditor, who selects a random sample of records
from each mental health professional’s caseload, on a quarterly basis. The auditor completes the
Medical Records Audit checklist for each record reviewed and provides a summary of the results
to the primary therapists, who then correct the deficiencies.

Results of these reviews are used to confirm that services are being documented consistently, to
identify problem areas in documentation, to provide feedback for supervision, and to identify
training needs. This information can be viewed as a broad representation of the Center’s



performance, or it can be broken down to represent specific locations, professional groups or
individual performance.

2. UTILIZATION REVIEW

The Center implements a Utilization Review Plan for mental health and related service
programs. The plan has been approved and adopted by both professional staff and the Board of
Directors.

The Utilization Review Commiftee is charged with responsibility for the overall monitoring of:

a. Quality of services as documented in the medical record.

b. Appropriateness of services rendered by the Center.

¢. Patterns of service utilization that might affect quality of services, utilization of Center
resources, or that would impact the Strategic Plan of the Center in ferms of programming.

All cases of individuals receiving mental health services are subject to review. It is the policy of
the Center that all clients receive services that reflect appropriate and effective utilization of staff
and facilities to best meet the needs of the clients.

The Chair of the Utilizatiorr Review Committee (URC) is delegated responsibility for the
implementation of the Utilization Review Plan.

The Utilization Review Committee meets at least quarterly. The Committee is composed of the
Medical Director (or his/her designee) and six (6) non-medical clinicians representing the
various disciplines employed by the Center (Psychologists and Psychological Examiners, Master
Social Workers, Licensed Professional Counselors, Nurses and Substance Abuse Counselors).
The Chair is selected by the Committee or may be appointed by the Clinical Director if requested
by the Committee. Non-medical committee members serve for two (2) years, with three (3)
members rotating off the Committee each year. Members may be re-appointed with the approval
of the Committee Chair and the member in question.

The Data Coordinator attends the meeting and serves in an ex-officio capacity as secretary of the
Committee.

A staff member is never the sole reviewer of the services for which he/she is responsible.

Method of Review

This is accomplished through review and evaluation of client records. All primary therapists
participate in monthly reviews of records, as assigned by the committee. Each clinician reviews
one record per month, completes the review form, and submits the form to the Data Coordinator.
The Utilization Review Committee then reviews the reports in the quarterly meetings. Staff
members do not review records that involve their own assigned clients.

1. Records are selected for review based on the following criteria:

a. Records by random selection of outpatient clients who:
1} Initiated treatment during the past six months; or
2} THave been receiving services for over two years; or
3} Are classified as “substance abuse” clients; or



4) Are Youth Services clients who have received mental health services within
the last six (6) months (two cases).

b. (Up to twenty-nine cases are reviewed in this category.)

¢. Records by random selection of clients who have received inpatient services within
the past six months (three cases).

d. Records by random selection of clients who have been in Psychosocial
Rehabilitation/Community-based Rehabilitation for a period of 30 days (visits), and
who have not been previously reviewed within the last two years (four cases).

e. Records by random selection of clients who have been seen on a one-time-only or
emergency/walk-in basis within the last six months (four cases).

f. Records by random selections that have been closed within the previous six months
(nine cases)

2. Records are chosen without prior knowledge of the primary therapist and placed 1n
charge of the data coordinator until such time as the committee member is able to review the
content. This action is intended provide a more accurate representation of chart content than
to allow the primary therapist to make corrections prior to the review. Upon review, the
record is then returned to the director of medical records to be secured until the scheduled
committee meeting.

It is the goal of the Center to review 200 records per year in this manner.

Factors to be Considered

[. Admission (Intake) Justified:

a. Could a more appropriate service be provided by another existing community source?
b. Ifaperson is found to be ineligible for services:
(1YWas the person informed as to the reasons?

(2)Was the referral source informed as to the reasons?
(3)Were recommendations made for alterative services?

c. Was screening adequate to warrant admission to & Center program for additional
services?
d. Was there undue delay in scheduling a return for service following screening?
e. Was assessment thorough, complete and timely?
2. Utilization Justified:

a. Length of Treatment (Service)
(1) Was status assigned appropriately?
(2) Was length of treatment appropriate to the problem and treatment course?
(3) Was length of treatment prolonged or shortened because of third party or any
other payment factor?
(4) Was client participation based on truly informed consent?
b. Evaluation/Staffing ,
(1) Were all evaluations and staffings necessary?
(2) Were reports of results prompt?
{3) Do evaluations identify the problems 1o justify an adequate client (treatment) plan
and to insure optimal utilization of staff skills?



c. Treatment Plan

(1) Does the Treatment Plan include a statement of the problem(s) and need(s) of the
individual, both immediate and long-term, describing intact functions which can
serve as assets for therapeutic exploitations?

(2) Are treatment plan goals created utilizing informed and active client input based
on history of symptoms and client expectations of treatment?

(3) Are treatment plan goals quantitative and measurable, with a realistic time frame
to accomplish objectives?

(4) Does the Treatment Plan include a program of specific modalities, psychotherapy,
pharmacotherapy, vocational training and/or rehabilitation potentials?

(5) Does the Treatment Plan include a program that encourages involvement of the
client’s significant other(s)?

(8) Does the Treatment Plan include, when indicated, referral for additional services
through other agencies?

(7) Does the Treatment Plan include a description of the staff’s involvement and any
expected response(s) to the services to be rendered?

(8) Does the Treatment Plan reflect or include a discharge/aftercare plan?

(9) Are the goals and objectives of the Treatment Plan based on the assessment that
was performed when program services were initiated?

(10) Are the services that have been offered based on the goals and objectives that are
specified in the Treatment Plan?

(11) Was the client offered/provided a copy of the treatment plan?

(12) Was the treatment plan reviewed and updated in accordance with Center policy?

d. Does the use of any pharmacotherapy reflect appropriate prescriptions, dosages and
required laboratory studies?

e. Isthe diagnosis/clinical impression appropriate, with regard to logical substantiation and
accuracy?

f. Do progress notes effectively document the course of treatment, demonstrating treatment
compatible with diagnosis, consideration of prior treatment, progress toward achievement
of treatment goals, and active involvement of the client?

g. Were transifion 1ssues addressed with the client prior to a change in level of care or
change in programs?

h. Is the quality of documentation in accordance with adopted standards (sufficiently
informative to reflect client progress)?

1. Is follow-up performed according to Center policy, including follow-up for missed
appointments and follow-up to referral source (when appropriate)?

Operational Procedures for Utilization Review Functions

Records are chosen without prior knowledge of the primary therapist and placed in charge of the
Data Coordinator until such time as the committee member is able to review the content. This
action is intended provide a more accurate representation of chart content than to allow the
primary therapist to make corrections prior to the review. Upon review, the record is then
returned to the director of medical records to be secured until the scheduled committee meeting.



Records are distributed to the reviewing members of the Utilization Review Committee.
Reviewers should have access to the records at least seven (7) days prior to the scheduled
URC meeting.

The data coordinator completes Utilization Review Committee Worksheets for each
record, to assure that each step in the process is completed in a timely fashion.
Utilization Review Committee recommendations and conclusions are reflected in writing
on the Utilization Review Report, and serve as the basis for Committee minutes and/or
reports.

The Utilization Review Summary Sheet is completed by the data coordinator and
returned for filing in client’s record.

The URC secretary insures that photocopies of each completed URC Worksheet are
distributed to the primary therapist/case manager and his/her immediate clinical
supervisor for mdicated action, if any. _

Each primary therapist/case manager communicates in writing to the URC, a report of
actions accomplished to rectify any documentation or clinical service deficiencies found.
Such written report is provided to the URC to insure completion of “old business™ during
the next scheduled meeting.

Comments are recorded, in writing, in the space provided on the URC Worksheet to serve
as a permanent record. Such review and comment serves as the focus of attention for full
committee discussion.

Reports and Minutes

Minutes of all Committee meetings are prepared by the secretary, signed by the URC Chair, and
forwarded 1o the Continuous Quality Improvement/Quality Assurance (CQI/QA) Committee,
Clinical Director, Medical Director and Executive Director. Minutes are structured as follows:

oo

Date, time, location, names of persons attending (members, others);
Approval of minutes (prior meeting);

0ld Business (status of previous client record/service deficiencies);
New Business:

1) Number and types of records reviewed according to URC procedure; description
of cases reviewed in which utilization was questioned, recommendations were
made, or actions were taken by the Committee. (Cases/clients are referred to by
identifying number only.)

2) Documentation of any other pertinent discussions, recommendations, or actions.

Adjournment; and
Signature of the Chair.

Results are quantified, and this information is incorporated into the report. The CQUQA
Committee uses the results in the evaluation and planning process, and to identify training needs.

Disciplinary Action

Failure of any Committee member to perform his/her assigned duties may result in suspension
and/or loss of employment in accordance with Center Personnel Policies and Procedures.



Failure of staff to comply with the recommendations of the Utilization Review Committee within
ten working days will result in a letter of reprimand being issued to the primary therapist, copied
to his/her personnel file and the program supervisor. If corrections are not adequately addressed
within ten additional days the Clinical Director and the Executive Director will be notified to
take corrective action. A second letter of reprimand from the URC chair will be issued to the
primary therapist, program supervisor, and the personnel file. The primary therapist has fen
working days from the second disciplinary action to make the necessary record corrections or be
suspended without pay from professional activities at the Center for three working days. The
primary therapist will be subject to termination if the chart corrections are not adequately
accomplished within ten days of completing the suspension.

The Center has adopted a Corporate Compliance Policy as defined below. The Board of
Directors reviews the policy and plan annually, and authorizes management to implement the
plan through a resolution each year. The Center designates a staff member to serve as the
Corporate Compliance Officer, serving as the primary point of contact regarding corporate
compliance issues.

CORPORATE COMPLIANCE PROGRAM AND PLAN

PURPOSE: To establish and publish the official policy of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and
Mental Health Center, Inc., regarding the organization's corporate compliance program/plan and,
assign responsibility for implementation of that plan.

POLICY: Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. 1s dedicated to the
delivery of behavioral health care in an environment characterized by strict conformance with
the highest standards of accountability for administration, clinical, business, marketing and
financial management. The organization’s leadership is fully committed to the need to prevent
and detect fraud, waste and abuse, fiscal mismanagement and misappropriation of funds and
therefore, to the development of a formal corporate compliance program to ensure ongoing
monitoring and conformance with all legal and regulatory requirements. Further, the
organization is committed to the establishment, implementation and maintenance of a corporate
compliance program that emphasizes: (1) prevention of wrong doing - whether intentional or
unintentional; (2) immediate reporting and investigation of questionable activities and practices
without consequences to the reporting party; and (3) timely correction of any situation which
puts the organization, its leadership or staff, funding sources or patients at risk. By formal
resolution and in accordance with this policy, the governance authority has delegated overall
responsibility for the Corporate Compliance Program to the Executive Director. '

PROCEDURE: The following procedures/guidelines will govern the design and implementation
of the organization's corporate compliance program:

PDesignation of a Corporate Compliance Officer

The Executive Director wiil formally designate a Corporate Compliance Officer (CCQO), monitor
the organization's corporate compliance program and ensure that the governance authority is
fully informed at all times on matters pertaining to corporate compliance.




Responsibilities of the Corporate Compliance Officer

In the performance of her/his duties, the CCO shall: (1) serve as the organization's primary point
of contact for all corporate compliance issues; (2) develop, implement and monitor the
organization's corporate compliance plan, including all internal and external monitoring,
auditing, investigative and reporting processes, procedures and systems; and (3) prepare, submit
and present periodic reports on corporate compliance issues to the Executive Director as
requested and/or as may be required. In

the performance of histher duties, the CCO shall report to the Executive Director, the Board’s
Corporate Compliance Committee, and the organization's accounting firm and/or legal counsel,
on an "as needed" basis, for matters and questions pertaining to corporate compliance. For
clarification, this provision does not relieve the CCO of keeping the Executive Director fully
informed of any and all matters that might necessitate direct contact with the, the Board’s
Corporate Compliance Committee, the organization’s accounting firm and/or legal counsel.

Annual Corporate Compliance Report

The CCO shall submit an annual corporate compliance report to the Executive Director. Annual
reports will, include at a minimum: (1) a summary of all allegations, investigations and/or
complaints processed in the preceding 12 months in conjunction with the corporate compliance
program; (2) a complete description of all corrective action(s) taken; and (3) any
recommendations for changes to the organization's policies and/or procedures.

Risk Management Assessment

As part of corporate compliance program, the CCO shall schedule and coordinate periodic risk
management assessments and/or audits to identify potential problem areas and "threats” that
could put the organization at risk for unusual liability, i.¢., billing and cash handling procedures,
diversion control practices, medication management policies, ete. Such assessments will
augment the organization's annual audit of its accounting system and provide an additional,
internal measure of operational accountability in a variety of areas. (Additional details pertaining
to the risk management process are contained in the organization's "Policy on Risk
Management”. The CCQ's risk management assessment - along with annual strategic planning
and development of the organization’s Strategic Plan - represents the organization's mechanism
for conducting an environmental scan.)

Corporate Compliance Plan Elements

The corporate compliance program for Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health
Center, Inc. is designed to afford the organization with a number of protections afforded under
the U.S. Federal Sentencing Reform Act and consists of:

1. A formal resolution on corporate compliance that has been adopted by the governance
authority as a way to document the effective date of program implementation;

2. Written designation of a Corporate Compliance Officer (CCO) responsible for
monitoring and reporting on matters pertaining to corporate compliance;

3. A corporate code of ethics regarding professional conduct, personal behavior, business

practices, marketing practices, clinical practices and potential conflicts of interest;



4. A "no reprisal" system for employees to use in reporting waste, fraud, abuse or other
questionable activities and practices;

5. Written procedures contained herein for:
a. Timely investigation of allegations of waste, fraud, abuse and/or other
wrongdoing;
b. Dealing with violators of the organization's code of ethics in a fair and consistent
manner; and
C. Dealing with violators of the organization's corporate compliance program/plan in
a fair and consistent manner; and
6. Policies and procedures to guide staff members in responding to subpoenas, search
warrants, investigations and other legal actions; and
7. Initial and ongoing training for staff, board members and contractors concerning

corporate compliance issues including, but not limited to, the following: billing and
coding procedures; documentation; fraud and abuse laws; federal whistleblower
provisions and rights; and the agency’s policies and procedures for detecting and/or
preventing fraud, abuse and waste.

Organizational Code of Conduct

Since Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. employs providers and
practitioners fromi a variety of disciplines, it is the expectation of the organization that every
service provider will act and operate in a manner consistent with the Code of Ethics of his/her
respective discipline. In the event that a service provider is not legally, ethically or otherwise
bound by a specific code of ethics, Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center,
Inc. will expect that he/she will provide treatment services and in strict accordance with the
following guiding principles: '

» Hold him/herself responsible for the delivery of the highest quality care to persons
served;

o Adhere to all applicable federal, state and local regulations for the delivery and
administration of behavioral healthcare services;

e Seek guidance from the appropriate Center supervisor before acting in situations not
clearly covered by organizational or professional codes of ethics

* Support the principle that competent job performance requires continuing
professional growth, development and education, and toward that end, avail
themselves of all appropriate opportunities for workforce development training; and

¢ DPeriodically review the ethical standards established for their respective professions
and discuss ethical issues, questions and concerns as a matter of routine clinical
Supervision. .

e Refrain from approaching clients concerning personal fund raising or selling items on
behalf of an organization.

o Reftrain from approaching other employees concerning personal fund raising or
seliing items on behalf of an organization during working hours;

¢ Demonstrate respect for and safeguard the personal property of the persons served,
visitors, and personnel in addition to the property owned by the Center.



e Refrain from developing a dating relationship with other personnel where a
supervisory relationship exists or any clients, maintaining appropriate professional
boundaries at all times.

e Refrain from witnessing any legal documents presented by a client or a client’s
representative. Such documents would include powers of attorney, guardianship, and
advance directives.

In business, marketing, service delivery, performance of professional responsibilities and human
resource practices, all employees of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center,
Inc. will be guided by the following corporate philosophy: Honesty, integrity, respect and
fairness constitute the key components of all of our dealings with patients, vendors/suppliers,
potential customers, employees and our communities. In all business and marketing activities, all
employees are hereby enjoined to represent the Center and its programs and services in an honest
manner and

to accurately portray the capabilities of the organization and its employees. A critical part of the
organization’s corporate compliance program is the expectation that each employee will fully
comply with all applicable statutes, laws, rules and regulations at all times.

No business code of ethics/conduct can cover every conceivable scenario that might arise in the
course of business conduct and marketing. Therefore, all employees are enjoined to abide by
these guiding principles and to seek assistance and clarification from the Executive Director or
Corporate Compliance Officer in the event that any situation or scenario arises that might
challenge the application of these principles. As a related matter, situations and circumstances
occasionally arise that may represent a potential conflict of interest. As a general principle, no
employee of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. will make any
decision on behalf of the company that would represent, result in or give the appearance of
personal gain or benefit, however slight. In such cases, employees are enjoined to discuss the
situation with the Executive Director or Corporate Compliance Officer prior to making any
decision that would represent a commitment of the Center’s assets, obligate the company in any
way and/or have the potential to give the appearance of impropriety or conflict of interest.

All new employees will be briefed on the organization’s expectations regarding ethical conduct
as part of new employee orientation. Additionally, refresher training on corporate compliance 1s
provided on an annual basis to each employee of the Center.

No-Reprisal Reporting System

An integral part of the organization's Corporate Compliance Program is a non-retaliatory system
that employees can use to report suspected waste, fraud, abuse and other questionable activities
and practices. The Federal False Claims Act prohibits the discharge or harassment of a
whistleblower who makes disclosures or files a suit. A guf fam provision in the act permits
individuals to file suit on behalf of the United States to recover damages incurred by the federal
government as a result of contractor fraud or other false claims. In return for filing the suit, the
whistleblower is entitled fo a significant portion of the proceeds, should they prevail. Reports can
be submitted to the Corporate Compliance Officer in four ways: (1) by mail; (2} by telephone;
(3) by fax; and (4) by e-mail. Program Directors are responsible for posting a "Corporate




Compliance Notice" in each clinic as a way to inform patients, employees and other interested
stakeholders about the organization's Corporate Compliance program and the system - including
contact information - for reporting suspicious activities.

Investigation Process

Corporate compliance “complaints”, “allegations™ or “violations” may be submitted directly to
the Corporate Compliance Officer, the Executive Director or the employee’s supervisor.
Generally, a complaint should be reported within three (3) days of its occurrence, or within three
(3) days of learning of the occurrence. Reports may be submitted anonymously, though the
reporter should keep a copy of the report as proof of action and for tracking purposes. Reports
must be in writing. No specific format is required. However, specificity of allegations is critical
to a successful investigation.

Cryptic or anonymous reports may not be actionable by the CCO if lack of specificity prevents a
reasonable investigation of charges.

Upon receipt of any report of suspected wrongdoing (including an alleged violation of the
company’s Code of Ethics), the Corporate Compliance Officer will contact the Executive
Director, and initiate an immediate investigation. Investigations of corporate compliance
matters will be conducted as expeditiously as possible with results - including recommendations
for any disciplinary and/or corrective action - provided in writing to the Executive Director. The
Corporate Compliance Officer is authorized direct and unimpeded access to all staff members as
a way to expedite corporate compliance investigations.

All corporate compliance investigations will be completed as quickly as possible but not later
than 30 calendar days from the time of “discovery”. In the event that an investigation cannot be
completed within 30 days, the Corporate Compliance Officer shall promptly notify the Executive
Director.

Violations Procedure

Substantiated violations of the organization's corporate compliance program and/or code of
ethics are serious matters and have potential legal ramifications for both Southwest Arkansas
Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. and its employees. Violators are subject to and will
be handled in accordance with the organization's disciplinary policies outlined in the company's
personnel policies.

Search Warrants, Subpoenas, Investigations and Other Legal Actions

In the event that any employee of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center,
Inc. receives or is notified of any search warrant, subpoena, investigation, inquiry or other legal
action involving the company, the Executive Director and/or Corporate Compliance Officer will
be immediately contacted by the most expedient means, i.c., telephone, e-mail, cell phone, fax,
etc. Copies of all legal documents served against Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental
Health Center, Inc. and/or its employees will be immediately copied and faxed to the Executive
Director and Corporate Compliance Officer. Under no circumstances will any records, files, -
receipts, or other forms of documentation be released without authorization from the Executive
Director of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc.




This policy recognizes that employees might well find themselves in a situation in which they
could potentially be threatened or coerced into releasing documentation without following this
policy. All employees must fully recognize and understand that: (1) "due process” includes the
opportunity to follow the established procedures of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental
Health Center, Inc. regarding search warrants, subpoenas, investigations and other legal actions;
and (2) these procedures include immediate notification to the Executive Director and/or
Corporate Compliance Officer in all cases and without delay.

Contractual Relationships

As a matter of policy, the Center will enter into contractual relationships only with individuals
and entities with similar values and, who have signed Business Associate Agreements as
required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. Further,
the organization specifically prohibits contracts that might pose a conflict of interest for either
party and/or which might ultimately result in a violation of the Center’s ethical standards. As a
way to insure that all contracts are appropriate and consistent with the spirit and intent of this
policy, all proposed contracts must be approved by the Executive Director.

At any time that a legal process is initiated against the Center, management receiving notice of
the action will immediately instruct Center staff that no records are to be destroyed, and that any
such process that has already been initiated will be terminated immediately.

Corporate Citizenship

The leadership of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. is committed
to being a good corporate citizen in those communities in which the Center operates clinics. As
a manifestation of this commitment, Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center,
Inc. will support and participate in recognized community activities that advocate for services for
persons suffering from the effect of mental illness and/or behavioral health disorders. Further,
the organization is committed to using the corporate compliance program, when appropriate, to
support advocacy efforts for the Center’s clients. Specifically, the organization supports
participation on local boards and agencies, sponsorship of local programs promoting good health
and citizenship, and participation in various service clubs and organizations in order to support
the communitics served by the Center.

Legal Conformance

Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. will comply with ail legal and
regulatory requirements including but not limited to: (a) rights of persons served, (b)
confidentiality requirements, (c) reporting requirements, (d) contractual agreements, (e) licensing
requirements, (f) corporate status, {g) employment practices, (h) mandatory employee testing;
and (i) privacy of clients.

Responsibility for conformance

All employees are responsible for strict conformance with this policy. New employees receive a
copy of the Corporate Compliance Program and Plan as part of their orientation. They sign an
“Acknowledgement of Receipt of Corporate Compliance Policy”. The original is retained in the
personnel file and a copy is sent to the Corporate Compliance Officer. New board members also
receive a copy of the Corporate Compliance Program and Plan as well as sign an




“Acknowledgement of Receipt of Corporate Compliance Policy.” Each employee signs a
“Performance Evaluation Acknowledgement of Compliance Obligations” form as part of his/her
yearly employee evaluation. Board members complete yearly acknowledgements also at the
beginning of each fiscal year.

At least annually, the Corporate Compliance Officer will ensure that all employees receive a
"refresher orientation" on the organization's corporate compliance program with an emphasis on
the employee’s responsibilities pertaining thereto. '

As part of the new client orientation, clients are informed of the organization's code of ethics as it pertains
to clinical practice and treatment issues. In the event that any client or other interested “stakeholder”
requests a copy of the organization's code of ethics, a copy of this policy will be immediately provided to
them by the responsible Program Director.



Electronic Medical Records

Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc. has utilized an electronic health
record (EHR) since 2012, Credible Behavioral Health Software is 2 HIPA A-compliant,
Meaningful Use Stage [II-certified Electronic Health Record provider. It adheres to MIPS, the
Merit Based Incentive Payment System, that adjusts payments based on performance in four
performance categories: quality, cost, promoting interoperability, and improvement activities.

All medical records are either created electronically or scanned and stored electronically in the
Credible software. Implementation of this software greatly reduced the Center’s risk and
increased its compliance rate due to various features within the software program such as not
allowing services to be billed unless appropriately documented. Its search capabilities are robust
enough to 1dentify every progress note which contains a certain string of characters (i.e.,
suicidal).

Credible has worked with the Arkansas DAABHS in order to assist its member organizations in
reporting data to DHS in the DHS-approved format and timeframe. SWACMHLC is, thus, able to
respond to any reporting request in a timely manner and is able to provide state auditors with
requested client records electronically within minutes.

Since 2012, client records have been cloud-based with Credible, existing on Credible servers
with back-up servers located on the west coast and the east coast, thus allowing the Center to
demonstrate an excellent disaster recovery plan.

The Center’s policies regarding the following are attached:
Records of the Persons Served-General Policies and Procedures
Transporting Medical Records
Medical Record Storage
Use and Disclosure of Records Without Required Consent
Forms Authorizing Release of Information
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1. Center staff members strive to communicate information in the client record in a manner that is
organized, clear, complete, current and legible. The Center strives to ensure that all staff
members have access to up-to-date electronic equipment. The Center currently maintains an
electronic record of all services, with few exceptions.

2. All documentation is signed by the provider. Electronic documentation is signed electronically:
paper documentation is signed manually before it is scanned into the electronic medical record.
Signatures on clinical documentation include the name and credentials of the provider.

3. The individual client record includes:

a.
b.

~® oo

@

I.
I3

K.

Date of admission.

Name, address and telephone number of the client’s legal guardian or representative
(when applicable).

Name, address and telephone number of an emergency contact person.

Name of the person coordinating services (primary therapist).

The location of any other records that may exist on the client.

Name, address and telephone number of the client’s primary care physician (when
applicable}).

Healthcare reimbursement information.

The client's:

(1) Health history.

(2) Current medications (if any).

(3) Basic demographic data required for state and national statistical reporting (e.g., race).
(4) Documentation of client orientation. :

(3) Assessments (Diagnostic Assessment, evaluations, and screenings).

(B) Master Treatment Plan and Master Treatment Plan Reviews

(7} Transition/discharge plan, when applicable.

A discharge summary for all clients who have terminated services with the Center.
Copies of any correspondence.

Appropriate information release forms.

Documentation of internal and external referrals (when applicable).

‘4. ltis the policy of the Center that the Master Treatment Plan is completed by the primary
therapist and signed by the psychiatrist within fourteen days after the initial service, and the
Master Treatment Plan Review is signed by the staff psychiatrist within fourteen days of
completion.



Policy Area: Records of the Persons Served Subject: Records of the Persons Served-General
Policies and Procedures

Effective Date: 1-21-16 Policy #: REC-]1
Revision Date: 1-2]-16, 9-21-17 Page# 20of 2
Additional Authority: CARF 2.G., HIPAA Review Date: [-2]-16, 9-21-17

9. Duplicate files are not maintained at Center service sites. Case managers may maintain copies
of the client's Master Treatment Plan as a tool to ensure they are providing needed services. The
copies of the Master Treatment Plan are secondary documents that are used for information only.
Case managers have been trained in confidentiality and are required to maintain the information in
a manner that protects confidentiality.

6. The Center contracts with a national software vendor which specializes in electronic records for
behavioral health providers. On August 1, 2012, any new client records were stored only in the
electronic record. All client medical records are stored on the software vendor's servers which can
be accessed via the internet with appropriate knowledge of the server name and the appropriate
password. The software vendor is able to provide the Center with assurances of compliance with
state and federal regulations concerning privacy, portability, accountability and security. In
addition, the Center employs a Privacy Officer. The software has a security matrix which allows
the Privacy Officer to control access to the point that employees are given the right to view only
the portions of the records on a “need to know” basis. The Center has strict measures in place to
ensure confidentiality when records are accessed electronically and maintains a security log for
access to any part of a client medical record.

7. Client records prior to August 1, 2012 either kept in locked storage units with appropriate
indexing, kept on microfilm or stored by case number on one of the Center's private servers which
is backed up nightly.

9. The confidentiality of client records is provided by safeguards for the physical integrity of the
record, and by releasing client records only with the consent of the client (or the client’s legal
representative), or pursuant to a court order. Applicable state and federal laws govern the release
of confidential client information. This policy specifically includes required compliance with the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act and all other applicable faws, statutes, codes
and regulations.

10. Every service provided to a client is documented. Diagnostic Assessments, psychological
reports, Single Point of Entry screenings, Master Treatment Plans and Reviews and other
services have specific reporting formats. Progress notes are generated for each therapy session,
collateral effort or other activity that is billed and not otherwise documented. Progress notes are
also generated when significant events transpire that warrant documentation.

11. All services must be documented in the electronic medical record by the end of the next
working business day. Providers are unable to bill for any billable service until the service is
appropriately completed and approved in the electronic medical record.



SW ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.

Policy Area: Rights of Persons Served Subject: Transporting Medical Records
Effective Date: 1-21-16 Policy #: R-4
Revision Date: [-2]-16 Page # 1 of I
Additional Authority: Review Date: /-2/-16, 9-21-17
Policy

It is the policy of the Center that records containing protected health information (PHI) are transported in
securely sealed containers to protect the confidentiality of the records and the persons served. A “chain of
custody” plan shall be used in describing accurately and completely all the steps in the records custody chain
during the movement of records from one site to another. Safeguards for transporting records include, but are
not limited to the following procedures:

Originating Site Information — The sender shall provide information as to the current location of the
records and the contact person responsible for the transportation arrangements. The sender shall notify
the receiver that the records will be transported and coordinate arrangements prior to actually
transporting records from one facility to another.

Records Category — The reason for the transfer will be clearly indicated for all medical records
transported between facilities, (i.e., transfer of active case, administrative review, to be scanned and
archived, off-site storage).

Transportation and Chain of Custody Information — The sender shall complete a Medical Records
Transport Form identifying the destination office, quantity of records/boxes being transported, and a
complete description or inventory of'the records being transported. The staff member transporting the
records will verify the inventory and sign and date a copy of the inventory for the sender. A copy of the
Transport form will also be provided to the receiver. The final destination of the records will be
identified on both the Transport Form and the container(s) used to transport the records.

Destination Certification — All records and boxes transported will be verified against the Medical
Records Transport Form at the destination or receiving office. The receiver shall sign and date a copy
of the Transport Form for the sender.

Originating Site Confirmation — The sender will sign, date and file the original Medical Records
Transport Form after the “chain of custody” has been completed.

Client records are stored in areas that allow for protection from fire and water damage, and from other
hazards.
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a. Records of closed cases are kept on the premises of the offices in which services were delivered. After
two years (1 year) of inactivity, the records are sent to the designated office for archiving, Older records
are stored on microfilm or optical storage media; new records are stored in the Center’s Electronic
Medical Record (EMR). Microfilm records and optical media are stored in the client records room in the
Texarkana office. Electronic clinical and administrative records are maintained on the network for rapid
retrieval. Closed records are also maintained in an archived format. Data is password protected and
only authorized personnel are given access to these files. The Center utilizes a multi-level password
security system to protect data access.

The Center has terminated the use of optical storage as of Fiscal Year 2008. All records are now
maintained in the Center’s EMR. Documents requiring a physical signature are stored in the paper
version of the record and, upen closure, are stored in a secured storage locations maintained by the
Center.

Records backed up through the optical storage system are copied in triplicate, with each copy stored in a
scparate, secure location.

. All electronic data files are archived daily by authorized personnel and back-up files are maintained
offsite. A ten-day rotation is utilized to insure the retrieval of 10 business days of data.

Network profiles of individuals who have system access are also maintained offsite and attempted
security breaches are monitored. Remote access is limited and provided on an as-needed basis. Remote
access to files, folders, documents and libraries is also monitored.

(1) Client records that have been backed up through the optical storage system described above
are routinely shredded after successful backup is confirmed.

(2) The Center takes measures to protect electronic records from destruction in the event of
litigation by securing the data on alternative types of electronic media, (i.e. compact discs
accessible via appropriate authorizations). No clinical record stored on electronic media is
ever intentionally destroyed. A complete history of each electronic record is maintained.
Should litigation be initiated prior to the archiving of the record, the archiving process may
still be completed, but the physical record will not be destroyed until litigation is completed.

(3)  Allrecords are maintained and stored in accordance with applicable state and federal
standards.
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Policy Area: Rights of Persons Served Subject: Use and Disclosure of Records Without
Required Consent

Effective Date: [-2/-16 Policy #: R-6

Revision Date: /-2/-16 Page# [ of

Additional Authority: Review Date: [-21-16, 9-21-17

No authorization is required to release routine information in the following circumstances:

Health care emergencies where the need to know outweighs privacy and confidentiality
considerations (information will be limited to that strictly needed for the emergency).

Rare circumstances where serving the common good outweighs privacy and confidentiality
considerations (i.e., to avert a serious threat to heaith or safety). These situations will be referred to
the Executive Director; the requests will not be processed by the Medical Records Department and
such situations will always be handled by the Executive Director or designee.

Referrals made for continuity of care to outreach clinics

Court officer in the course of legal proceedings relating to voluntary or involuntary commitment
When required by law and for purposes consistent with that law

Arkansas State Hospital

Mandated reports to state agencies for child abuse, elder or patient/client abuse; knife and gunshot
wounds, birth and death statistics, coroner’s or medical examiner’s cases, communicable diseases.
State licensure and accrediting agencies and peer review organizations

Non-patient identifiable clinical or statistical data collected by this facility
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Policy Area: Rights of Persons Served Subject: Forms Authorizing Release of Information
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Additional Authority: Review Date: [-21-16, 9-21-17

(1) All forms anthorizing release of confidential information shall comply with applicable state and
federal laws, including, but not limited to, those listed above.

(2) Written authorization shall contain detailed, specific information directing the release of
information. Authorizations shall specifically include the following:

Name and address of facility

Name of the person served

Person or organization/company to whom the information is being released.

Purpose of the disclosure (i.e., support information for an insurance claim)Release of
information that is not essential to the stated purpose of the request is specifically prohibited.
Signature of the person served or duly authorized representative.

Date signed (date cannot precede the time period of the treatment dates for which
information is to be released; date shall be reasonably current).

Date and/or conditions under which the authorization expires (not to exceed one year, except
in special circumstances, such as parole, probation requirements).

Information to be released (i.¢., episode of care covered, treatment and/or procedure, specific
test results, summary of most recent hospitalization, summary of all inpatient and outpatient
care) Authorizations specifving "any and all information” or other such broadly inclusive
statements may not be honored unless accompanied by subpoena or court order.
Authorizations that do not specifically identify the agency, type of information and purpose of
release, "blanket releases”, are strictly prohibited.

Form in which information is to be released (i.e., written, verbal, audio, video, electronic,
etc.).

Information as to how and when the authorization can be revoked.

The signature of a witness to the person served or duly authorized representative is required.

To assist in obtaining the necessary information, an approved authorization form shall be used as far as
possible. Letters and alternative forms for any and all information shall be honored provided the required
elements are included. The Southwest Arkansas Counseling & Mental Health Center, Inc. will correspond with
the person making the request to obtain a listing of the specific information desired.
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- INDEPENDENY AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Sorthwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center Inc..
' Texarkana, Arkansas

Report on the Fmaneial Statements

We have audited the accampsmymg fmanmai statements c:f Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Menta]
Health Center, Inc. (the Center), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018
and 2017, and the related statemerits of activities, cash ﬂmgs program costs.(by cost center), mental health

: program costs (by program) for the years then ended, and ihe related notes to the fmancxal staternents. '

: 'Management’s Responsibility fnr the Financial Statements

Managemant is responsxble for the prepamtzon -and fair presentatmn of thasa :t‘ nanclal statemeﬂts in

accordance with accounting prmczples generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control rélevant to thepreparation and fair presentation
- of finaricial statements that are free from material mxsstatement whether due: to fraud or error, |

Aud:tor’s Respansibllity .

Our responsxbxlxty is to.express an opinion on these ﬁnancxal statements based on our audits, We conducted
.our audits in accardance with auditing standards. gemeraily accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financiat audits contained in-Government Audﬁing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requite that we plan and perform the audits to
: obtam reasonable assurance about whether the. ﬁnaucsal statements are free from material m:sstatement

An aud;t mvelves perfannmg pmcedures to: ahtam audlt evxdence about the amounts and disctosurﬁs inthe
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the rigks of matcna! ‘misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
- those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevani to the emzty s preparation and fair
presentation of the findncial statements in order fo demgn audit procedures that are appropriate in the
tircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg ai opition on the effectiveness of the entity’s mtcmal_

- control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accountmg estimates made by management,
as well as evaluatmg the.overall presentation of the financial stateretits. :

We beheve that the audit evxdence we have obtamcd is sufﬁcxent and appmpnate to prov:de a basxs for our
audlt clpmion

Opinion

Inour opmmn the. f’mancml statements reforred to above present fmrly, in alI matenal respects, the finantial

position of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Heslth Center, Inc.-as of June 30, 2018 ard 2017,

‘and the chariges in its net assefs, cash flows, program costs (by cost center) and mentsl health prograrm costs
by programn) for the years then ended in accordance w:th accountzng prim:apies generaiiy accepted inthe
- United States of Amema

T‘exnrkmm (}Jﬂcc & ?9()0 st ch!aml Taive, Suite 302, Texarkana, Texas 75503 4 Toleihone (903} 8313477 ‘& E‘AX (03) 8313482
Litﬂu Roek Office gv 201 B. Markhasn; Suite 560, [ﬁlle Kook, Atlansns 72201 @ 'l'i,kpimne (301) 3752025 @ FAX (501) 375-8704



"Board of Directors
- Southwest’ Arkansas Counsehng and Mental Health Center Inc

Other Matters
| Other Inﬁarmatzon

Our’ aud;t was conducted for the purposa of forming an opinion-on the ﬁnancxa} statements as a whole. The
combining statement of financial pomtlon combmmg schedule of activities by: program, and schedules of
revenues and expenses are presented for purposes of addmonal anaiyszs and are not requzred part of the
. addltlonai anaiysas as: reqmred by Title 2 U.8. Code. of Fedeml Regulatwns (CFR) Part 200 Umfarm '
- Administrative Requivements, Cost Prmcqales and Audijt Requirements for Federal Awards and is alsonot.
a reqmrcd patt of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of state awards is. presented
for purposes -of additional analysis as required by the“Arkansas Department of Human Semces Audxt .
Guidelmes and is aIso nota required part of the bas;e ﬁnancial statcments : o

The combmmg statement of. ﬁnancxal posmon combmmg statemen’t of activities by program, scheduies of
~ revenues and expenses; schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures-of state
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying. -
accounting and- other records: used to piepare the basic financial statgments. ‘Such information has been:

-subjécted fo the auditing procedm’es applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and cerfain -

‘additional procediires, includiig comparing and reconciling such mformatmn directly to the undetlying.
accounting and: other. records :used to prepate the basic fmancmls statements or to the basic financial
statemetits theinisélves, and other additional procedurcs i accordance with audxtmg standards gencrally'.
accepted in the Gn;ted States of America. Inour opimon the combining statement of financial position,

“combining ' staterment ‘of activities by program, schedules ‘of -revenues and expenses, schedule of

: expendﬂures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of state awards are fairly stated in ali matenal -

' respects in relatmn to the basw ﬁnam:tlal statements asa whole. :

Other Reportmg Req mred by Governmeut Audltmg Standards

2018 on-our cansxdsration af Soutliwest Arkansas Counselmg and Mentai Health Center Tic. ’s mtemal
control - over financial reportitig and” on our tests of -its compliance’ with certain provisions .of laws,
- regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters The purpose of that report is to describe the
- -scope of our testing of internal control over financial repé ting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provzde an‘opinion on: internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. ‘That report is
_an infegral part of an audit. perfonned in‘accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering:
- Southwest Arkansas Counselmg dnd Mental Health Center Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compllance - :

. / . L4 ”

o : o CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Texarkana, Texas

~ September 21, 2018
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SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC
' STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION ' :
JUNE 30 2018 AND 2017 R

ASSETS

. Cash and Cash Equlvalents
Investments Other.
*Invéstmentsat Cost
~Accounts Receivable; Net
Due from Related Parties
o 'Prepald Expenses :
Accrued Interest and Other
Intangible Assets .~
" Land, Buﬂdmgs a.nd Equipment - Net

- :Téga!’Assets: 8
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Lia};%ﬁﬁ'ejg -

: jAccounts Payabie

Leases Payable
;Notes Payabie Current

Tﬁitalzlaiﬂbﬂiﬁes'
: NetAssets '

Unresmcted
Temporanly Restr:ctcd

: Totai Net Assets

. Total Liabilities and Net Assets

g

L2018

1,701,159
© 1,022,624
100,000

822,693

- 15,828
41,269
1,391

3279

- 1,797,316

2017 -

1,444,842

1,213,725

741,359

28,796

3 462
350

1,499.;829. |

5505550

: ..,'?1

499,434

747,856

11,062
326,117

18,015

5012363

507,886

669,821
706

1015

1,602,484

1,196,428

13,885,869

17,206

3774884

41,051

3903075

3,815,935

The -ac‘c‘ompanying notes are an ihtegral_ part of these financial statements. -

3.

" 5.505,559

5012363



SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.
o STA’I‘EMENTS OF ACTIVITIES '
YEARS ENDED JUNE 3&3,, 2018 AND 2017

2018 o 2017

Changes in Unrestncted Net. Assets
Service Fees '- - : : S $ 12,271,236 . 8. 11,334,763
Less “Charitable A}lowances N ' o _ - (76,589) 0 {66,133) -
- Service Fees-Net 12,194,647 11,268,630
Investmcnt Income _ . 18,347 12,445 0
Gain on- Dlspnsal of Fixed Assets . ' S 4,250 : ew
Rentai Income™ - o _ 33,660 36,400
Other - s | o 104449 - 68,633
Total Unrestricted Revennes S 12355353 '1-153_836,'108- -

' _Net Assets Released from Restrxcﬁons o N _
Satisfaction ofPrngi;aiﬁ Restrictions S o 598783 822_382.
Expiration’ of T' ¢ Restrictions . R oo 23845 0 24587

: o 622,598 846 '769..

12971951 _ 12232 877- =

: _PragramSemces - L : o S R
 Mental Health T SIS -5205316_ - 4,969,096

”.sphtRaﬂMental Heaith Treatment Program : L 2,440,565 2481,124

 Horizon Mental Health Treatment Program 1,662,855 1,737,848
Youth Services _ L 1ensTe 838476
FosterCate = - - . S o 854,868 770,097

CAcuteCare i S A4S 190,085

. .Substance Abuse’. . - - L o 138979 603,044
- River Ridge Treatrnent?rogram e IR 654894 . 690,884
Courity Heights. =~ e 17168 178,470
- Total Program Serviees -~ =~ 12,866,966 12,459, 124

: Increase (Deerease}mﬂnrestncted NetAssets T 110985 -'-(2-26524‘7)1 '

Federal State aqd__LocaiGrants ' _ - _.-598,_753 . : 842 3‘54-

‘Net Assets Re}eascd from Restrictions . _(6;22,5’98} o (846 '?69)
Decreasg in Temporanly Restricted Net Assets B (ﬁ3a-34_5) L 4a15)
Increase (Becrease) in Net Assets S 40 (30, 662)
Net Assets Begmnmg of Year | : ' . 3,8 15,935 4,046,597

Net Assets - End of Year C 8 3903075 § 3815935

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stafements.
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SOUTH‘WEST ARKANSAS COUN SELING AND MEN'I‘AL HEALTH CENTER, INC‘
- STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS '
'YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Increase (Decrease) 111 Cash Equlvalents - : —_— s 2017
-Cash Flows from Operatmg Activities: ' B _' .
: -Cash Recerved Tor Services Provided . _ ) $ 12,854,425 $ 12, 046 723
' Other Operating Cash Receipts S : 12,968 -
' Cash Paid to Emplnyeea and Snpphers ' - . (12,598,304) (12 094 426)
-~ Tnterest Paid _ : S e T (9,073) ;
. -Interést Recelved . h ' 17306 R V- 445 .
} Net Cash Provxdcd (Used) by Operatmg Activities o S 271322 ~ {35,258)
: Cash Flows: frnm Investmg Actmtles o . _ L Co o C L
'  Sales of Investments'= Other - - S o egier 389,653 -
Purchases of Invg:_sma_n_ts ' C : _ - {160,000) SRR
- Sale of Property and Equipment Co s 4250 197
~ Purchases of Property and Equipment Lo o (452;829) _ L
Net Cash Prowded (Used) by Investing Actlwtles _ o L (357,478) . 389,850 -
Cash Flows from Fm:mcmg Activities: N o L e o '
Proceedsﬁ'omissuancc of Notes Payable - B S _ . 343400 -
. Payments on Notes Payable - Lo - {(6,221) T
Paymaits on Lease Agréements. . D706y o {10418)
Net CashProwded(Used)byFmancmgActwmes S oo i 336 a3 o (10A418) .
NetlncreasemCash andCash Equivalents ' R P 256 317 SRR "344 174 S
_Cash and (Z‘ash Eqnivaients atBegmnmganear | R N o 444 842 1, 190 668 :; o
'Casll and Cash Eqmva!ents atEmi 01' Year L S :_ I 701 159 e _1;444_,842.. .

. Reconeiiiation of Deerease in Net Assets to ‘Net Cash Provided {Used} by Operatmg Actwlt;es _
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets R _ G S 87, 140 ' (230,662)

e 3Ad}ustments to Recencﬁe Increase (Decraasc) mNet '

O Assely wNel.Cdahquwdad (Us&d)byO;ae:atmgAutmnes A :
Depreciation -~ . .- S 152,063 176,672

Non Cash Contribution of: Eqmpment N o D - . - (20 172) :
. Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets _ e BT (4,250) .
. BadDebts .. oo S ST L T99387 754, 326 _
Chéﬁtéble AlIowance o S . B A 176_558'9- 66, 13;3
- ;_Changes in Assets and Liabiiitles _ : . _ e
. .(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Recewab]e - : S (957310) (933,125) :
+“(Increase) Decrease in Dué from: Rc]ated Patty. . S 12,968 C(28,796)
" (ncrease) Decrease in Acorued Interest: - A - £1,041). =
- (Increase) Decrease:in Prepaid. Expens& o e 42,193 54246
-~ Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenues: S e - : © (36,456).
i Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable I : (8';452) 338,848
- Incredse (Decréase) in Due to Related Party o - - (25474) -
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroll Items o _ o 18035 (150,798)
Net Cash Prov:d&d by Operatmg Act;v:tles o : . $ .2‘?7,322 7 (35,258) .

NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITiES
In 2016, a grant was recclved in the amount of $20 172 from the Arkansas nghway and

Transportatmn Department for'the. purchasc of vans. .

The accompanying notes are. an integral part of these financial statements.
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Acute Care
Auto Expense
Bad Debt Expense -
Board Expense
Client Medical Expense
Client Services. -
Clinical muﬁm:mm
Conference and Registration
Data mw.on%maw Expense -
Umﬁan_m:aa .
Drug Expenise -
Dues and Publications
. Focd

. Fringe Benefits
Insurance
Interest Expense -
Janitorial Services and Supplies
Joint-Venture. Uﬁ.aﬁmmﬂaﬂ
Legaland. >ono§m Fees
Miscellaneous
Office Supplies
Other Purchased wmﬁaonm
Postage:
Recreation and Wamonﬁ_wmﬁos
Regruitment muaﬂamﬁﬁm
. Rent-Lease Payments -
Repairs and gmﬁmmnﬁunm
Salaries
-Small Furniture Eﬁ 3%&%%
%m_mwguw
Travel
Utikities
ﬁb.mamﬂozum mﬂéﬁam

Total Program nomﬂm

The accompanying notes are an integral part.of these .mmm:nmmm statements.

g -
3,595

319,060
9,695

2,379

1,747

16,950
69,701
106346

1,438

28,834

12412
599,247

73,333
9,073
98,749

56, 565
35,211
19,987
510,321

22,649

3,327

44212

52,561

47,634
2,672,605
C15375

222,460

78,722

52,794

$
6 m%

195,412 -

. 30,634

14
1,170

19,051

8,036
4,770
16,110
243,847

43,224

*&088

12,968
11,202 -
1,381
1,861 -

240316
o258
7,463

2,145
3,763
2,516

1423222

4348 -

87622

8,164

57434

5
mhmw

Nww w@d..

24.997

54

360

12,001

5,160

2; mmm”
373

34,589

216,503

27456

7407

RAvY
S 039
qumo

| 44296
536,

=0
1034

o A400
C2882
920,706 -
L 626
oo 38370
o 13,504
mw__w@ _

m
1, :o
282

- ,. 1,040

49

491
144,706

14,453

208

2,240

571

44,921
- 682

745

686.877

6,317
R
2371

26752
S 399¢

1,378,
Tt 33,637
27,785

167

26
L21s
2,312

12:
950
2410

33,351

1322

747

10,592
836
530412

21,578
-+ 3,540
© 52,030

e -

$140,745

1

- Abuse

18,906

95
" 5,056

2136
4.541

1,305

786.

95,630

5276
e 250

1,750

68

2760

605
175
504

122,109
545,139
R

o T6ST.
2oa

16

Ridge

$ -
677

34,167

3

54

325
5,054
20,644

2217
500

45475
72,240
6,610

17,787

1os1
182

1,765
74,275

30
1,678

© 490

2312
11218

308,365

oL 2283
L6130
L5185

38,509

-

1,518

104
1,264

9,708

68

20,782
1,859

3,014
560

1,278
403

M“wa .
o ar
271
92,814

- 13
5272

2940

9240

$ 140,745
19,607
799,387
9,695
58,185

. . 69 .
. 1,881
21,876
120,756
- 152,063
- 18,187
32,002
112341
1,426,356
175,533
9,073
134,493
- 12,968
81,442
50,322
35,932
1,444,547
24.857
23,801
50,602
111,987
| 65:043
16,861,307
24,040
411,371
210,371
210,638
16,284

$5205.316

mm Ermqm

8 2.440.565.

g ”Rﬂwwwm_

8854868

S140745 § T38979 - $654.894  § 157,168 512,866,966




. souT!

Hrm unnoBﬁmE\_mm Eﬁmm are an Eﬁwﬁm_ part. om mawm mmgﬁmm wﬁﬁﬁaam

m&%ﬁmﬁmg Qm m.wam
.mmmﬁ.%&w. Horizon
- Mental Health . Mental Health “ . . .
Mental . Treatment Treamment . Youth Acute Substance: River County

Cost oaama.w Health - . meEE - Program . Services Care _ Abuse . Ridge . Heights - Total Costs
Acute Care : O T $ T = F T $190085  § - % - % - $ 190,085
Auto Fxpense _ 4,820 mmmw _ C3831 T 1,858 - e - 1,103 ! 17,935
Bad Debt Expense 269,862 180,431 265,549 407 - - 16,617 21,360 - 754,326
Board Expetise 10,182 = R - - - . - - 10,182
Client Medical Expense 5,227 32,044 29977 - 100- - - R - 67,356
Client Services - - S e - E - . « - 122 - 122
Clinical Expense . _ 1,265 ca 342 - 3,249 - - . - - 4,856
Conference and’ Wmm_mwmnoz 9,026 1,690 - 1,365 490 1,465 - . - 360 650 - 15,046
Data Processing mxm“mnua 46,341 31,864 20,315 10,218 3,575 - mqu&., 8,734 2,183 132,664
Depreciation - - 119,964 10,773 8,784 386" - 1,852 21,724 13,189 176,672
‘Drug Expense - L. L030. 16,368 . 3,342 1,202 . 45 3,202 .. 874 - 16,063
Dises’ %mmazaaaa G 32,984 356" 3T 520 - L9500 - 7300 500 - 35781
Food - : . 11,123 15,644 e 35,036 . 866 1,148 - 192 44,049 36 108,094 -
Fringe Benefits 540,651 251,330 211,841 - 122,809 35,591 - 81,067 68,385 21,663 1,333,337
Insurance 70,159 37,855 22,735 13,317 71,535 “ 3,937 9,824 - 2ATT 161830
Janitorial mﬂﬁsmﬁammﬁ%ﬁ 63,415 . 11,568 10,742 702 122 - 69T, 16,800 © 1,978 106,024
JoGat-Venture Disbursement - 111,791 e - - S - b T - - 11,791
Legal and Accountitg Fees 21,286 15,086 10540 - 3,017 1,006 - - 2,182 1,685 754 " 55,556
Miscellaneoils 53,251 1,485 449 . 159 16,372 - .93 © 340 1,578 73,727
Office Supplies . 16,899 2,513 23982 2,935 1,091 - 2,189 . . 1618 409 30,636
Other Purchased Services 501,014 214,660 46,134, 38,474 & 491,848 - 678 94,380 © 54 33 242,
Postage _ 25,171 : ©. 348 . 898 . 337 L= - 21 - - 27475
Recreation muawgosm_ﬁm% 3,711 2,875 3,895 228 L3158 - e 1,488 4,476 17,988
Recruitment and Training 20,592 293 L. 293 124. ‘552 = S 1,395 15 123318
Rent-Lease Payments 36,017 2,041 3081 12,719 . 24780 23713 - 81,011
Repairs gazﬁuwugs 42,596 4,964 3653 1,375 e - 404 C1L05T 1,890 65,939
Salaries 2,595,718 1,365,486 935093 © - 561,014 . 161,920 - 4240590 3357745 107872 6,486,907
Small w:émﬁm mumbmmzmﬁnmm. 14,827 1,334 o473 832 01689 - 815 .. 08¢ . - - 20,626
Telephone 290,579 114,982 56,826 35,766 . 3,695 - . 16,588 12,630 5,364 526,430
Travel 38,702 . 5599 11740 19,843 . 42,859 - 22,371 8,072 4,144 1.203,330
Utilities _ S 44117 - _ _m_m,_ﬁ R __ﬁ_mﬁ_ 8478 . - - iz asam 8,967 188,199
‘Wraparound Services 28,567 E T e e - - e S e 28,567
Total Program Costs T 54,969,096 w § § w 37 w& _.m m W._mwm 476 770,097 m 190, a& _.m 603,044 " 690,884 '$.178470 §12,459, § .




SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS C{)UNSELING AND MENTAL I-IEALTH CENTER INC,
STATEMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM COSTS (BY PROGRAM)

_ Cost Category

YEAR ENI}ED JUNE 30 2018

Total Mehtal

Health: Costs

 Rehabilitative
_ _ Day
Outpatient - Services:

Emergency

- AutoExpense
Bad Debt ExpenSe

- Board Expense . _ -

Client Medical Expense
Clinical Expense
Conference and Registratton

- Data Processzng R

- Depreciation
Drug Expense _
- Dues and Publications
Food |
Fringe Beneﬁts
- Insurance -
Interest Expense

*Janitorial Services and Supphes co

: _ Legai and Accounmng Fees
:Mlscelianeeus _
B Other Purchased Servzces |
; Postage -
. Recreation and Resoaxahzaﬁon

. Recruitment and Training -

y Rent- Lease Payments -
B Repairs and Mamtenancﬁ :
- Salaries - .-

. Small Furniture. and Apphancess -

-.Felephone c
S Travel

- Wtilities - -

- Wraparound Services
" Total Program Costs

- Unils of Servzce Prov1ded
(In Qurter Hours)

: _Cost Per Unit.of Servu:e .

5

' 3595

319,060

2,672,605
15,375

695

2,379

1,747

16,950
69,781
31@6,345
1,438
18,834

12412

599 29';’
75333

; 9073.:_'
08,749 -
56,565

35211

19987

1510,321
zz 649

Y37,
44212

52,561
#7634

- N2AG0

78722
52,794

16,284

$ 3442 5 w7
S 305 495 13,050
9282 397

2278 9

- 1,673 71
S162300 693
66,738 2,851
101,824 4,350

$

177 59 .

27,608 LI79
C 11,884 . 508
573818 24,512

2,130 3,081

94551
54,160 2,314
A4 1,440
19138 817
488,626 20,872
- 21,686" S92

CA2,333
50326
45,609
. 2,558,984
Lot 629
213,002
75,375
" 50,550 -

8,688 37
4,039

. 3,186 Co L 136

| ' .1928.(_)8 :.. '
2,150
1,948 ) E

109,311

9,099
3,220
2,159
15,592 666

6
- 515
16

27
112
172

a7
20

967

15

57
32
823

126

g

5205 316

mn oe% ﬁ'

171,367

30 38

iw

$ 4,984,021 §
C95TRN

97,140

RTINS KNS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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212,900
4.09%
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$ .
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SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM CGSTS (BY PROGRAM)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

' o Rfehabilitat'ive :
o . _ Toté! Méntaf o -~ Day
. CostCategory. L Health Costs - Ouitpatient = Services = . Emergency
. Auto Expetise S - ' $ 4820 8 4523 § 283 % “14
© BadDebtExpense =~ o 269862 253255 15840 767 . -
Board Expense. 10,182 9355 598 . 29
Client Medical Expense o CsZE . 4,908 B30T S 1
Clinical Expenise ~ =~ : 1,265 o L18T ; 7% 4
* " Conference and Reglst:ratmn .y - Lot 90260 8470 530 26
- DataProcessing ' L AB341 - 43489 2100 1320
 Depreciation ' L 19964 1125820 7,041 341
- Drug Expense . : LO30 .. 967 ' 60 5
- Dues and Publications . 3984 30954 193 94
~ Food. . - ' L L1230 0438 653 32
' -_FrmgeBeneﬁts S : 540651 s07380. . 3LT4 1537

CIhsutanee o L o oISy -565342'- | 4118 - 199

Janitorlal Servxces and Supplles SR S L AR - K| L3720 180
_Legai apd_ﬁqcpuntmg Fees ST 212860 19,977 C 1,249 .60
' ‘Miscellaneous L s3psl vaeeM a6 1T
- Office Supplies o e 1ssse 9 S
§ Other Purchased Servxces o ' _ : . ::01 o140 470,182~ 29408 1424
: EPcastatge g ' SR 2_’5,._1-’_!-1' 23-:,{5&- TS V7 ¢ A 38

o 'Recreatmn and Resoc:lahzatmn - _ ' 37 3482 218 ' il '

_ -Recrmtmentand’l‘rmmng SERRE T 20892 - o 19324 T L2090 5.?=_3 o
. Rent-Lease Payments =~ ' o 0360170 33801 214 e

 Repairs and Mamtenance o | 42,596 39975 2,500 B E
‘Balaries. L T : '25‘95'7'13, L 2,435982 152,359 SRV E: ¥ S

o SmallFumxture and Appham.es IR © 14827 0 18915 870 42
Telephone S | 290, 579 272,697 1705 826
JTaavel - S 8802 o s34 5206 1252,

Udlites DT A4 2589 125

© Wraparound Services . o8S67 - 26809 - Lerr - &l
TotalProgramCosts e . $ 4,969,096 s 4663306 § 291,666 5 - 14,124

'10000% : 9385% 5587%- o G28%

Unitsof Servme Provxded : o SR | | .
(InQuanerHeurs) e S 2o 188620 _' 1.95,9_14_ 91075 . 1,631

- ;CgstPerUn;t_-of-S_ewlcg' o . N 2634 $ "'4:8':62'& ) 3200 § 866

z,/

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
JUNE 30 2018 AND 2017 '

NOTE A- SIGNIFICANT ACC(}UNTING POLICIES

B

o of Southwest Arkansas As a not—for~prof it orgamzatmn thc Center is: exempt ﬁ*om federai mcome :

Nature of the ()rgamzatmn Southwest Arkansas Counsclmg and Mental Hea}th Center, Inc. (the
Center)is a not-for-profit organization that provides counseling and mental health services toresidents

.....

- mfnnnanon rcgardmg its ﬁnanclai posztion and actwmes accordmg to three classcs of net assets h
| unrestricted; temporarﬂy restricted: and permanently resmcted The Center had no pennaue,ntly'-_ ;

restr:cted net assets as of June 30, 2018 or 2017

' restnctmns ob the statements of actmtles

E Estlmates - The preparatlon of: fmancxal statements in confommy wﬂh U S generaliy awepted -
: .accountmg pnnmples (U8 G‘AAP) tequires: mﬁmagement to miake estimates and assumptions that - -
Z afff:ct the reportsd amounts Qf asse‘ts and hablhues the disclosure of contmgent assets and llablhtleﬁ .

'Land Bnildings and Eqmpment Land bmldmgs and eqmpment e slated at h:swr:cai cost '
' Acqu151tmns of laﬂd bulldmgs and eqmpment in excess of $i ,000 are capltahzed :

'_Bepreclatlon The Center computes depreclatmn on the straight—ime method over the estimated —
;:scrwce lwes of the assets whlch range from 3 years to 40 years : - S e

Aecrued Compensam} Absences The Centel ;ecorda. tlie cost of unployee cmnpemated absenceb ' :_ |
in the period in which the benef‘ ts are eamed The Centcr ailows each employee to carry forward 200 o

: j hours each year past their anniversary: date;

Bad Debt E‘xpenge aml Contrnctual Atljustmem Revcnue is recorded at the Cente; s sta.udard rate, -

_-With confractual adjustments deducted pursaant to an agreement. with. third-party payer sources to
artive at total revenue.  The Center provides an allowance for doubtful accounts: based on an:aged -

' analysls of accounts recéivable and historical wllecimn data. Bad debtd are recorded ds progtam costs
for patients who are self-pay or covered by private insuranice. Accounts are charged off only after all

collection efforts have been exhausted. Of the Cénter's accounts receivable, $409, 535 and $376 388
weie over 91} days old as of Jung 30, 2018 and 2017, respectwely

}

; :Prﬂgram Cost Alocation Methods Direct clas.51ﬁcation of costs is ut:hzed when costs can. be
: speclﬁca] Iy 1denﬂfied with a tost center .

: Admm:s[r_ratlve and indirect costs are allocated on'a monﬂﬂy basxs to cost- centers bascd on est:lmated

o utlhzanon Depreciation is aflocated to cost centers based on fixed asset utilization.

10



SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER INC.
e - NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30 2018 AND 2017
NGTE A S}LGNIFICAN T ACCOUNT]NG POLICIES (CON TINUED}

| '19 Mental Health Program Cost Allocatmn Methods Aliocatron of mental health C0sts to each
program is-based on time studres - .

] Fumi Type The. Center operatss under a smgle fund structure Separate program accounts are.
" maintained for all federal and stdte grant proceeds in order to facilitate compliance with réporting
requirements. - Costs are recorded by program for direct expenses when costs can be specifically
-identified with a- program Other costs are ai]ocated to programs as indicated above. Transfers of

- getieral revenues to various, program accoutits are made to cover any excess of expenses over revenues

- inthose programs. - In’ addition; exeess fevenues over expenses from performance-based contracts are . - - :

- transferred {0 the general operating accounts upon completion of the- terms of the contract.

: v 12 '_Cash and Cash Equ:valents For purposes of presentatlon m tho statements of cash floWs the Center. ' B s

1-3;:Investments - cher - Thc Center 5 anvestments mcluded'c:ertrﬁcates of depos:t thh maturmes |

: : respﬂctlvdyf'f i

140 'Investments at Cost - Dunng the year ended June 30 2018 the Center purchased shares in‘a
- Provider-led Arkansas Shared Sav;ngs Entity (PASSE). The PASSE is 2 new model of organized care .
- that will address the needs of certain Medicaid beneficiaries who have complex behavioral healthand -
"_mteilectual and deveiopmental disabilities service. needs: ‘The Center purchased 1 B—umt share at a
' value of $t 00 000 ropresentmg 1. 83% ownershlp of the PASSE ' s -

U The Center s investment in the PASSE is gecounted for usmg the cost method The aggregate costof
the. Company’s cost-method. investments totaled $100,000 as of Jurie 30, 2018. There were no cost-

- niethod investiments held at June 30, 2017, This iiwestient was not evaluated for impairment becduse

(a)itis not practicable to estinate its fair value due to insufficient information being available and (b)

. management did ‘not identify any events or changes in crrcumstances that might hava a mgmﬁcant o s

. 'adverse effect on the fair value of the PASSE

11



SOUTHWEST ARKAN SAS COUNSELING AND MEN TAL HEALTH CENTER, INC
' 'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
. JUNE 30 2018 AND 2017

NOTE B- ACCGUNTS RECEIVABLE

Acccunts recelvable are reported at their estimated net reahzable vaiue Detaﬂs of accounts recewable _
as of June 30 2018.and 2017, are. as follows: ' :

' : . '20_18_; S - 2017
. Medlcare(Net) j" 5f T ®o37 % 5869
'MemcaadAmasF;rst o CeoTasle L 269810
_:-MedlcdidHonwn - _ ' o 65207 R 61 '941--
MedicaidRehab . . .. - 56563 . . . 56,072

:Reservc for Medlcaad - - (200,000) - (143.437) . (200,000) (143, 923)
Forensic. - . T T,000 R 4,500
' ~ State Appropnatmns e ' o e 23,572
DWIL | | R Looaz027 L 35,472
" Youth Servnces e _ B S er4re 85476
| SubstanceAbuse Contract B AT 65442
¥ 2 ' ' S wmr 65876
-Other - TR _ Sl 198,232 EOE T 106933['.
USAC - 319977 o 302608
'.ReseweforUSAc : S (302,608) 0 17369 0 (302,608). . -

River Ridge AssessmentFees. -~ 318140 T 43,076

. SplitRail Medicaid . _:i'fs-z;g?;;_ 90875
'_seifPayandlnsmance?auents R _529965 e 47380 ’ o

“Less Allowarice for Doubtful Accounts (284, 303) 245 162 o (202,106) 269274
'Net Accounts Recewable : : " B

Transportaﬂon Bepartment grants m the. amount «a;f $I 7 206 and $41 051 respectweiy

12
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SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE D- LAN"D BU]LI)]NGS AND EQUIPMENT

The foilowmg is a summary of the cost. and. estlmated Jives of the pmperty, fand, bu1idmgs and
equlpment by categoxy at }une 30; .

IRTEPES . : Es_ti_mate_d. '
2018 2017 - _UsefulLife
-Butidmgs S = $ 2933 526' IR 2634527 1825Vrs.
- ComputerEqmpment o o ' 905,363 - 3 898,539 3-10 Yrs.
. Computer Software. .~ . R 646617'_* L eALe1T 3-10 Yis,
' 'Furmmrc anquulpment ‘ S 616 D12 S ':606_,-:042' - 3410 Yrs,
Automobiles - . - 359,470 - 407,171 3 Yrs.
‘Building Improvements : : - AT3328 - 445,977 - - 10 Yrs.
S 5935216 - 5633873
. Accumulated Depreciation 4,560,260) (4,456,404)
e © 1374956 T 1,177,469
~Land 422,360 f 322360

Land Bulldmgs anquulpment (Net) 3 _ 1_ 797316 § - 11,499,829 _‘

| ;;Ncmf: E- CAPITAL LEASES

The Center has cap:tal lcases thh IBM and Tos}nba for eqmpment and: soﬂ:warc whlch are recorded in.

0 land, bmldmgs and equipient, Thenet book valueé of the equipment and software was $798 Jurie 30,
5 2017 The eqmpment and software hecame ﬁiliy depreciated dm:mg the year ended June 30, 2018 o

; Future mmusnum lease payments and ”fhe present value of net’ mmmmm lf:asxa paymﬁnts under the capital

- lea's'es were $7(16 and 5728 resPectwely, as of A The 3{) 2017 There were 1o minimum ]ease payments:

' iosses to s:he extent that the partxes fall to perform as com:racted through those agreements

The Center mamtams its cash balances at several dlﬂ'erent fi nanclai institutions in Southwcst Arkansas :
Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000;

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Center’ 8 cash balances were: undermsured hy apprommately S

$1 203, 000 and $988,000, respectwely

l:“f’f,
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SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.
~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

NOTE G- mm'.vmm

';In 1998 ‘the Center and South Arkansas Regional Health Centet; Inc.. (SARHC) entered into-an
. agreement for the provision of mental health services to:the clients of the. Split Rail Mental Health
_Treatment Program (Sphit Rail) located “in- Preseott,. Arkansas. -The accounting and administrative

- fanction is performed by the Center, and, pursvant to the terms of the agreﬁment the net chang;c inthe -

- petassels of the fucility each year will be divided equally between ‘both centers aftet 25% of the total

. difect costs, -including fixed asset purchases is allocated to the Center as an admmrstratwe fee. The
--operation of Split Rail is reported as 4 separate cost center:in the Center’s finanicial staternenits with
SARHC's share of the increase in nét assets of the 3omt~venture reporteé as‘a separate item Within the

- cost center. As of June 30,2018 and 2017, the Center recorded 'a receivable of '$15,828 and $28,796-

- from SARHC for split rail operational results. The settlement of amounts due to SARHC are made on

~the baszs of cash racmpts and cash’ d:sbursements whlle the amounts shown on the ﬁnancml statements_

| June 30, 20] 8 and 203 7 summary operatmg mfonnaﬂon of the 3cmt~venmre for dlstrlbutlon purposes S

is.as foiiows -

TotalRevemmies - | $ 2690661"'_ $ 28T
':Tdtalziaiiegtﬁxgﬁeﬁsés-_* S -' 2,131,786 21196’77
' Admmlsﬁ'ativeFee ' = . | _ o 532945.'_ L 5299195.
’I‘otalExpenses S 5 _: S '?: : .:2,-664,_7_25 - ; ;2649596 -
f 3::ilﬂcrease“mlwtﬁss_ets' _ : S | N . 25,936 o _ 223 582: |
: :.SARHC.Slhﬁl.”é R R DR 12968 g

.‘;S-WAC-&MHC.Shm B ST g ees s 1L

NOTE H- RET]REMENT PLAN

made: hy amployeas f]ccfmg to participate in: the Plan The Center's maix:hmg cnnmbmmm wam
$136 2{)2 and $1 17 111 for 2018 and 2017, rcspectwely ' S :

NOTE i SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Ceriter has: evalnated subsequent events through Septembar 21, 2018, the date on which the
ﬁnanclal statements were gvailable to be issned.. ' :

_ 14
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'SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER,INC.

-~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: JUNE 30, 2_!_)_18'A,N_D--_201-7 _

NOTE J - INCOME TAXES

- U.8. GAAP requires the- Center’s management to evaluate. tax ‘positions-taken by the Center and =~
- recognize a tax liability if the Center has taken an uncertain tax position that more likely than not would
- not be sustained upon examination. The Center has analyzed the tax positions taken, and has conchided
xpected to be taken that would Tequire recognition of -

. that there are o uncertain positions taken or ¢ _ Te 1 of &
- liability or disclosure in the financial staterients.: The Center is subject to routine audits by taxing
_“jurisdictions; however, there are cusrently no-audits for any tax periods in progress. The Centerbelieves

: '___:;it is no longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to 2015, -

R NOTE K - LINE OF CREDIT -

. I_i_l: a prmr year, Ethé_ Cejntef 'obfai.ﬁed' a $400, 0.0:0_:. }X,pe of crecht :from Eanne_fs Bank.- This line of credit is | .
- 'secured by the certificate of deposit and interest is payable monthly on outstaniding balances at 3.99%.

. Asof June 30, 2018 and 2017, no borrowings had occurred. -

. NOTEL-NOTES PAYABLE

- During the year ended Turie 30, 2018, the Center purchased & building and financed $343.400 of the =

| :purchase. The note has a'term of five years; an interest rate of 4.5%, and'a monthly payment of'ssz,ls’si'_- S .

- The ambuﬁt.d_f'_mqﬂi;éd;priﬁgipa_i'paym'eﬁ_;s:a's? of June 30, 2018, is as :f_'dllo'\{vs: :
o June 30,2019 G o U8 1L062
June 30,2020 0 R 11,537
Jun330,2023 . R 289,785

C Towlpmmens gy

N Lesscurrent ﬁoﬂioﬂ o o R ._ : _(1.1;_062)

Totallong-term debt N T
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INDEPEN'DENT AUDIT OR’S REPORT ON. INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL
. REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED'ON AN AUDIT.OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDAN! CE WITH GOVERNMEN TA UDITING
' STAN,DARDS o

' Board of D1rectors o ' s

Southwest Arkansas Ccmnselmg and Mental Heaith Center Inc
Wa have audlteri in aecordance wn;h the audztmg standards generaliy accepted in the United States of Amerwa :
and the standards appheable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
‘Comptroller General of the United States, the: ﬁnancnal statements’ of Southwest Arkansas Counseling and
‘Mental Health Center; Inc: (the Centar) which comprise the statement of financial position‘as of June 30, 2018,
~and the related statements of activities, cash flows, program costs (by cost ‘center), and mental health program.
" costs (by. prograin) for the: -year then ended, and the- re]ated notes 10 the f' nanclal statéments, and have issued
. OuE-feport t thereon dated Septamber 21, 2018 Y . co

: '_;IntemaiControloverFman.xa}Re”omn B

In plannmg and performmg our aud:t of the ﬁuanclal statements we consxdered the Center's mtema}"com'ol :
- over-financial reporting (internal control) to determine the' audit procedures- that are appropriate in the -

' circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purposeof

o expwssmg an opinion oi the effectiveness of the Center’s mtemal contml Accordingly, we do not express an.
: _opmmn on the effactweness of the Center s mtemal control : : . '

A deﬁcxency in mtﬁrnal control axmts when the deszgn or opcratlon ofa co:m'ol does not ai!ow mmiagement of - SE
employees, in the normal cowrse of performing: their: asmgned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct

| . miisstatererits on a timely basis, A material weakness i isa deficiency, or a combination of deﬁciencles, in oo -
. internal control suich that there is a reasonsble puss1bihty Aat a material misstatement of the entity's financial - .

 statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a. timely bagis. A significant deficiency isa ' -

- deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intérnal control that i is !ess severe than a materxal weakness, yet
' 'nnportant enough to ment attentlon by those charged thh govemance . o

Our consxderat:on o:t internal control was for the limited purpose descnbed in the ﬁrst paragtaph of thrs section

- .and. was not desxgned to identify all deficiencies in intetnal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, dufing our adit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal -

- . control that we consider to be ‘material weaknesaes However materxal wealmesses may ex:st that have not
3 been ldentxﬁed : : :

- jmlsstatement, we perfonned teists of it§ comphance with certam provisions of I&WS, regulatlons, contracts and_
- ‘graut agreements, noncofipliance with which could have 4 direc‘t and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts.  However, prawdmg an-opinion on comphance ‘with those: provisions was notan
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The. results:of our- tests disclosed
no ‘instances of noncomphance or other matters that are reqmred to be reported ‘under Govemment Auditing
' S&‘andards .
lé
Rxarkana {)ﬁ‘iw & 2900 St. Mlchnulhrlvc Saite 302, Texarkana, Toxas 7 303 & ’ﬁ.l&ph(mra (90'!) B3L47T. @ FAX(903) 933482
Litthe Rogk Office 4 201 &, Matkhat, Suite 300, Little Rock, Arkansns 72261 @ Tolophone (501) 3752035 @ FAX (301) 375.8704



'.:Baard GfDIrectors _
' SeuthWest Arkansas Counselmg and Merital Health Center Inc.

- Pumose of thls Rego

jThe purpase of thxs report is solely to descnbe the scope of onr: testmg of mtema] control and compl;ance and o

- the results ef that testlng, and not to provade an opmmn on the effectweness of the Center 5 mtemal contro] or

L Szandards in con&dermg the Center s mtemal contml and comphance Accordmgly, this ccmmumcation is: not e
su1table for any other purpose - S : e

ze -;’ 7%;&’ 4’,14/‘

= CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN TS

-

 Texarkana, Texas
' Sep;tgn_iber 21,2018 -
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B : B g _ .
:  INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
. MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors .

Southwest Arkansas Coanseling and Mental Health Center, Tnc.

We haye audited Southwest Arkansas Counseling and Mental Health Center, Inc:’s (the Center) compliance
-+ Wwith the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplemens that could have'a
‘direct and material effect on each of the Center’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The .
~:Centei’s major federal- progtams are identified i the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying

' ‘schedule of findings and questioned costs.

' Management fis:iéspohéibldféif e_:bmpliaﬁ_ée.with_.fc{dcral_ statutes, fggg;ilgtibnsﬁ,_ﬁndgthe terms aﬂﬂ,:éoﬁditions 6_f.;_ LTl

o -its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. e

on our andit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance

. in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
- applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General -
of the United States; and the audit requirentents of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
. Administrative Requirements, Cost: Principles; -and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
- Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidancé require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain -
" reasonable assurance abiout whether noneompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program oceurred. An audit inchides
. examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Center’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary iri the circumstances.. . S '

- ‘Ourresponsibility is'to e¥press an opinion on compliance for each of the Center’s major federal programs based-

W believe that our audit provides a:faaséaijzab:le_'ﬁasia;"fdr our opinion on compliance for sach major federal
- program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Center’s compliance.

I our opinion, the Center complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requifements referred
' to above that could have a direct and material effect on'each of its major federal programs for the year ended
~June 30,2018, T RN Co _ o

Texaricana Office. 4 2900 8t Michas! Diive, Snits 30, “Texarkang, Texas 75503, & Tatephone (‘903_) B33-3477 . FAX (903) 8313482
Little Rock Office 4 201 F. Murklinia, Suite 500, Lithe Rock, A:kingas 722" Telphone (S01) 3752625 ‘& FAX (5013 3758704



Board of Dxrectors
Southwest Arkansas Counselmg and Mental Health Center Inc.

. Re mt o Intema} Control over Comy 11ance |
o .Management of the Ccnter is- responsnble for estabisshmg and mamt&mmg effective mtemal .control over -

‘compliance with the lypes of compliance requirements m,ferred to above. In planning and performmg our audit
of comphance we considered the Center’s internal control over compliance with the types.of requirements that

could have a direct and 'material effect on each major federal program to determirie the auditing procedures that

:_' are’ appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an oplmon on compliance for each major -
- fedetal program and to test and report ¢ on internal control over comphance in accordance with the Uniform-

Guidance, but not for the purpose of « expressmg an opinion. on'the effeotiveness of internal- control over .
compliance,. Accordmgiy, we do not express an. opxmon on fhe effectweness af the Center s mtemal ccntrol SERNE

~over comphanee

A def czency in. mtemal control over complzance exnsts when the demgn or operatlon of 4 control over

- comphance does not allow management or employces, in the normal course of performing their ass1gned _ -
- functions, to prevent, or detect and correct; noncomphance with a'type of compliance requu*emen‘t of afederal .-

- program on a timely ‘basis. A material weakness in intersial conirol over compliance is a deficiency, of =

combination of deficiénicies, in internal control over compllance, such that there is a reasonable pDSSlbllity that

- material noncompliance with a type of cmnphance requirément of a federal program will not be prevented, of -~
' detected and- corrected, on’'a tlmely basis. A szgmf cant deficiency. in- internal control over compliance isa-

=deﬁc1ancy, or:a: combmamm of deﬁclenmes, in-internal confrol over compliance with a type of compliance - |
' i'requurement of 2 federal program that 1s iess severe than a mater(al weakncss in: mtemai control over:

é()ur cons:deratlon of mternai contiol a over eomphance ‘wils for the Izmzted purpose descnbed in the ﬁrst g

 paragraph of this section'and was not designed to ldentlfy all deficiencies in initernal control over. comphance o

- that might be material weakiesses or significant deficiescies: We' did not identify any deficiencies in internal o

~ goritrol over compliance that we consxder to be matenal weaknesses Huwsvcr, matcraal Weaknesses may exist
- that have not: been 1denhﬁed : . : _ =

- Tl‘.te purpose of thls report on mternal cnntroi over comphance is. soiely to- descﬂbe the scope of out tastmg of ..
“internal ‘control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requ:rements of the Umfoxm '

R Gmdance Accnrdmgly, thls report is zmt smtable for any o’ther purpose

CERTIFIEE PUBLIC ACCOUNTA”N F S

September 21, 2018 - - -

»
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| INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATISTICAL SYSTEM

| iBoard of Dlrecters - L ' '
 Southwest Arkansas Counsclmg and Mental Hea!th Center Inc

 We hava audzted the f‘ nanclal statements of Southwcst Arkaiisas Counseimg and Mental Healih Center, Ing,
: (the Centar} for the year ended’ June 30, 201 8, and have issued ¢ our report thereon dated September 21 2018

We have also aumted the Cem:er‘s statements of program wsts (by cost centcr) mental health progra.m costs -
(by program), statistical system and related initernal control measures for dccumentmg and appropriate reporting .
~of data regarding: staff activities, units of service and recipients of services for the year ended June 30, 2018, s
We conducted. our audit in’ accordance with. generally: accepted auditing standards and specaﬁc audltmg B
standards promulgated by: the Division ofBehzmoral Healgh Services, Department of Human Services and the j
State of Arkansas, and included sich oﬂ1er tests of the a‘ecountmg and statlstxcal records and. other audztmg
. _procedures 85 we conmdered necessary in the cucumstances : : -
_ "T{‘he speczﬂc audltmg standards adopted by the Dmsmn of Behavmmi Hea,lth Servwes apply to the aud:t of L
- statistical systeris of mcmal heaith orgamzat:ons Under these audn‘mg standards, the purpose of. such an audnt. L
isto deter_n_u_nc the IR : : o p :
S conss.stency between the deﬁmtmns of umts of services pmsmbed
~ bythe Division of Behavioral Health Serv:ces and those reportad by the
: Centcr, and

e statxstwa] system 5 rehabxhty for accur&tsly and camp]etely
' -documentmg and reporting client and community. services data -
5 required by the Division of Rehiavioral Health. Services. Such
 eliability is dependem upon the adoption and-utilization of appropnate
y mtema] control measures within the statxstmal system

“The: prmmpal mtemal control issues regardmg rel;able reportmg of cl:ent and commumty servxces data by the R
- va;smn of Behavmral H&alth Servmes are: . L T N '

s pmmotmn of a,ccurate and cumpiete documentatmn cf chent '

E”) .

- prumotmn of accirate: and appropnate documentatiﬂﬂ of services
' rendered to chen‘ts and the commumty :

- Our audit of the (.exrter § staﬁstxca.l system was centered on these issues and specxﬁcally focused upon the degree
to whxch appmprlate mtemai cantrol Measures were utlhzed

'fmarkam Office’ @ 24900 5t Mmhaa] l‘mve "sl.llfﬂ 302, Tmmrkunz Texas ‘J‘Sﬂ[)’i 9 Txltpimnc (903) B31.3477 @ Fax (9;;3) W J W34
imle Rovk Office @ 201 E Markhum Suite 500, Little Rogk, Arkgl&as TR0 & Tclt:phunu {561y 3752005 4 FAX (5013 375.8704:



. Bcard of D;rectors :
f Southwest Arkansas Counselmg and: Mental Health Ceuter Inc

_ The management of the Center is: responszbie for estabhshmg and mamtammg a system of stanstical mtemai E

- control. In fulfilling this- responstblhty, estimates and judgments by management are requxrsd to assessthe

- expected benefits and related costs of control procedures The objectives of the statistical system are to provide -
e .management W".{ﬂl reasonable but not absoi’uie, assurance that client and commumty services are pmv;ded and- o

' .:In our’ opmmn, Southwest Arkamas Counselmg and Mental I-Iealth Center Inc has for theyear ended June 30 := C

. 2018

R fmriy reported chent and commumty services 1o the Behavmral Health
' :Services Division: consistent with deﬁmtmns and umtizatlons pre-
scr:hed hy suah d1v1smn, and :

N f - mcorporated ancl ut;hzed apprapnate measures cf statistzcal mtemal_
- control to promote rehabie decumentatmn and repomng of data
regardmg e :

T i staffactlvmes,
L 'umts of service and -
reczpients of semues

- nmnher of _c_h_ents sewed S e
.~ units of direct client services and consultatmn and educatmn .
-services prowded and’ -

- cost-per—umt af services

Fa écantamed in the statements of program costs. (by cost center} and mental health program costs (by program) are e

- fair thh respect to accuracy and compIeteness ;

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN TS

- Texarkana, Texas
- September 21 2018
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. SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER INC

SCHEDUL;E OF FINDINGS AND' QI]ESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2018

Summary of Audlt Results - L

: -;ﬁFmanczal Smtements i

= Type of audltor s report 1ssued 0n the ﬁnanclal statements

L .EIntemaI contro} over financxa! reportmg

Sigmﬁcant Deﬁc;encxes ;dentlﬁed that are: not. canszdered m be -

matenal weaimesses‘

_Noncemphancc materxal to the ﬁnancml statements .

5

i f‘.Int‘emal contro,l over' a,;: :pmgrams
' Matenal wea.kn' sses 1dent1f ed

materfal Weaknesses

S Typa of audltor 5 rep_.rt:£SSued on mmphance for ma]or programs

L : :Fmdmgs disclosed in the audlt whlch'are rcqmred to be reportcd i

Govemmeni Audﬂmg Slandurdb

o

g ':'gmﬁcant Deﬁcxenc:es;identlf ed that are. nut cons1dered to be e

Unmodified

5 :-:Unmodlﬁed

CFDA#93 959_-:"
CFDA #3959

e .$7595999-; |

NowRepred

__-NoneReportedﬁ:;

--;.NoneRepartedf':':fgf'if.i &

. NoveReported

_:NeneReported;:-_':-; g

| NomeReported

"'—Nﬁhézkefﬁar_tedjj o
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-TotaimepamnentefﬂealmanﬁHumanSamces B Ty .1491750_:--:-“"

SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS -
mR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 ~ o

Federat Total © Total .

Federai Granter\Pass~Thrﬂugh Grantor\ o o o CFDA Progran | ngram
Pﬂmm’l‘lﬂe e el i R RRTIEN e '_-_Numb;e'r .- Revennes . Expendltures

Department of Health ami Human
Sf:l'vu:es B :

Grams Passed Through the Arkansas -
3 Q:.Department oi‘ Human Servaces. B Cot _
. R o 193658 § 208249 § 208249
;"'COmnlumtyMental I—Iealth Saw:ces Biock Grant ' S . 93958 119,552 S119,552 ¢
* Crisis Services . L2 93.958 88,371 B3
" Money Follows the Person Rebalancmg Demonstration : 93791 - 425 oo 4250
o SocmlServwesBlackGrant S . : T R R RTINS A
S AIcoholandDmg S APUETEEE 93667 8866 8866
: _'Socxal ServzcesBlockGrantTlﬂeXX SR L e 3.
| RPN R 93667 50,074

93767 - 195546
93.959 . B20,667

"'landDrugTreatment '

TotalPassad?Thmugh iﬁéArkansas o RS L T
DepamnentofHumanServxces e A R 1“4991*'750-1 g

_TotalFederalFmancnalAssnstance . R o o $ 1,491, 750-,:"..$.  :1,49._;1,7.:5-@ e

. :Notes to Schedule nfExpendltures of I‘ederal Awanls
] This schedule lS prepared on t.he accruai basm of accauntmg
T The Center d1d eieot 10 use: the 16% de minimis mdlrect cost rate.{ R

: In 201 8 the Center recewed Medicare funds of $138 008 and N“hdmand funds ef $6,147,674 under fee for service
' --serwce comracts whmh are ot canmdered federal awards. since they are dﬂ'ect federai cash assistance £ mdmduais

23



SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENT AL HEAL’I'H CENTER, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWAR])S
FOR YEA.R ENDED J’UNE 30, 20i8

 Grant Period

‘Total
Program

Revenues

.:Tota'l: :
“Program -

| _,s.:t_a_ie G;-éntdxli’rogmmf'fiae_

Arkansas Bepartment of Human Serv:ces

' -Acu?e 'It!patiént
. C8P- A
~CSP - B
: .-CASSP
- ;Sta‘te Appropnatmn-(}eneral 3
- Youth Services - JDC
- Yonth Servwes Sanctxons
- _ESystemofCare ' SR
Drug and Alcohal Safety Educat:cm Program

:"I_}_ﬂ's_ ;s_che.dule. 15,-.pifep_arcd on ;:hg ;agcrual -b;ais_ls of a_cco‘un‘ting. '

24

ng-
-

L NT
' 7/1/17

SEg e

‘\5

6/30/ 18'

TH/17 -

6/30/18

THNT - 6_/30;_‘18 g
CINT-6B08
CTIAT 68008 0
_ 'mm 5/3w1s§:..'

..3.5-'57/_1/x7 6/30!13'

TNT s 6/30[18-3_'
CAT-6/3018
TNT 613018

- 6/30/18

6/30/ 18

% 13,5?7',444

6/30/18 .
TNT-6/30/18.
. 6/30/18
T 1M7-6/30118

-

©$ . 143,681

193,210

61842
- 83,607
55,000 .
. 165,001
1,079,689
192210
94,237
- 256276 -
57667 5]
‘:;:.594491
116480 -
© 300,038
199,652
L 75

Expenditures . o

$ 143,681 .

193210

" 165,001

10’79689_ S
192210
amr

300,038

99652

Y

3 577 444:. -

| -':.-,.3,57?,444 |

$ 3577444 '
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. SOUTH’WEST ARKANSAS COUN SELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES' BY PRGGRAM -
~ YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2918

Menta] _ o S T R Spht Ranl
© . Health . Lo T e S MentalHeaithi_
.Treatment .~ Youth. = A'cilte - CASSP . Foster . “Treatment .
Program - - Servsces Carc C Progmm : Care Lo Program

Revenues S . : S _
~ Program Reveriue Lo % 255052 8 1508 030 $ 143 531 $ 51 606 $ 970, 740 $
o State-General Appmprmtlon R - 165,001 - . _ s
“Forensics' : _ 850000 0 - . G oes e R -
- Client & Community '%ervrce% j : 300,038 oL L .

iE ] t'..g'.li

- "

- Crisls Services _ ' _ 188,023 BEEEE
Medicaid: . g 1,599,718 a
“Medicare . L : 1394720 0 o =0

- Mental Health Block Grant oo 85892 .

CoTtle XX o 48841 e
. “Patient Fees Self Pay S 138741 58

ZPatieut’FeesInsumnca C o o 439,823 -
STHUSACH : : : o : 25-882-
.Meanmgﬁxi Use . o _

- Qther Confracts. ' S 36 782

. Tigss: Charitable Allowancc L (71 196)

o Gam_on}:);sposa! ofFixedAssets S 4250

1.69;5‘01. 01,155 2668 286?;
e e 12302'_: o
33,660 - ;

15087 0 (9D 1.*14,-1-'83-: 5

' 8"1’166 .- 23 SRR 35 1 €
I 293094

11{}503 Cme SRR

83 607 - ': Sl e

_ (3597) 66 SRR

[T T T T
PR T S S N T SRS S S S S

213-"_:111 stient Income=: 18347 - Rian e
' ;.ersceHaneﬁus Im:ome ) ~-:: E 192,054 “ - 10,625

(227.684)

1,246,398 :('4:35:6_;.312;) thgs) 5 _
0 854868

AT A8 _-1;01:1;5176. 140745

SR Au_oiExpense S L 3,595 LEIO e T '
;o BadDethxpensc S : - 276,143 282 :

: Ex ; : S SRR ¥ .
2379 . .

: 717_ 2
o400 1218

o305 2,312
U360 S

e RO
16710 - 1040
66,650 6317
105986 . - 42
Caas o zam
28834, S R
BB 700/ ST
541362 144,706 -
56,689 14,453
9073 e

98.741 . L. 200

=
1 1] H L L H 1 i
1

147 2410
57935 33351
18,644 1322

L R T Y TR T N

1207 0 AT
17,429 10,392

280 836
388 530412

e 55358 22400
]-Mmceﬂanecus _ o : 17782 . - 571
COffice Supplies . 1 o dg0T. 5500 -
-@therPurchased Semces Dewo 509933 0 445927
- Postage = T C 22,649 ©. 682
. “Recreatic a.nd Resnmalzzatmn B - 3248 L 10
" Recrui : : 43,886 - 745
: -;Rent—LeasePayment_s e AL 26,752
© - Repairs: andMamtenance - ' o, 377 399
- -Salaries ' 2,347,954 686,877
Srali Fumlture and Apphances o e300 1378
“Telephone ™~ : A 2;19;,565 33.637
; .;Travelz:... ;' : : S . ) ) '639(}9 2’]785 . 3
- Utilities : R 52794_ 8606 : - 51434
- 'WraparoundSemces T R - e : 16.284 G e L
Total Expenses . . L 4680 593- -j 101I576 1‘407‘45” 52418 854868 2,440,563

79 2016
326 1325
20,750.00 __
128700 -

J4651 201579 1423, por S
34500 - Tos . 4348
2,895 3,540 87622
14813 52,030 8164

LI I e R

3DecreaseinNetAssets o $ 875140 $ S - ‘ :-$_  _-'_'r'.s,; C et :- $:



SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS C{)UNSELING AND MEN'I‘AL HEALTH CENTER INC.

COINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES. BY PROGRAM (CONT INUED)
YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues

. Program Revenue

. ‘State General Apprupnamon '

Forensics -

;fCheni & Commnmty Servmes o

: ':;Mcdlcmd.
.+ -Medicare Co
g t'iHealthBlock Grant '

1emF ees Seif Pay' -

o ==:Iomt-Venture Dlsbursement
: g-Legal and Accmmtmg Fees

: : ggkecreatmn and Resocmlzanon E
* ‘Recrnitment and Trammg E

- ‘Rent-Lease Payments - :
- Repairs zmd Mamtenance

" Balaries

BN “Small Furniture and Apphances
. Telephorie” .~ - :
- Travel -

. {tilities

. Wraparound Sérvzces

 Janitorial Services and: Supphes _

Horizon

‘Mentat Health
Treatent

_DWI.

Substance
Abuse

River

o :Rid&e _

County

HEig[lts R

ftra'tal L

Py 1y

1,921,188

13,837

177907

3,600
12,901

U oa e e

_(466578)

$ 306472 $ 258411‘

PRIV T I TR S T R S T T S SR PO ST

13117;;:; -

segrs

$§ 576,112

- 60 _

5
73

f$'-

28431;'_ 5

LA TR J00 U TN R D O B SR R T S T T |

33,660
123,508

$ 4070104
165001

155,000

300,038

188023

6400177

C165311
-5_119552551‘_ -

319 589}75'

i 654,894

1,662,855

5558
21 60 -

o997

94

o 3.6()--
2,000

5,160
L8338
373

34 589
216,503

27,456
STA407

1827
1,09

2,330
44 296

. _63_6i.- :
-390 -
134
4490 -

2,552

920,706

-39, 370
13,504

52319

382
223,480
R

7407

13 861
868

a5
g

31419 3903

977
. ':‘_,'1.:25:

RY-RE
146
9455
e
321,659

8,180
s

250..

9709 ¢

1518 |

NI

: 1,264

Caa o

___ISTI6E 12934106
18007
"".j’_7993877.;

20,782 . 142635¢
1,859

o1

. 560
1278

aes 35932

5202
47
271
92,814
C k3

5272

2940 o

9, 240

5 '1,,662,355 3

“SiosEs

L A19390

654,894

157, 168.;

12,866,966

: .Z-Total Expenses _ : _ _
Z;"I}acreasemNetAssets R e g g e g a8 87140

2.7..



Cp

SDU‘THWEST ARKAN SAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES (CONTRACT BASIS)

Revenues and Gther Fmancing Sources _ e e .
ServicsFess | R I 2856679
‘GrantRevenies ~ . o L : - '2'9':394"
BadDethxpense : ' ' : S T B -.'_-{195412)
Total Revenues and Other Fmancmg Sources T e ' B 690 661

I)lrect Expenses

Auto Expense. - e o - e S o 6,549 B

: Chen_t_MedlcalExpense IS o TS 30634
- Clinical Expense: . - SRR o : SR
: ._ConferenceandRegzstratmn o Ce 'j ' 1170
. DataProgessing . S 19,08
. Depreciation: . - . C R 8036
E:I)rug‘i;’,xpensm: S . T e e A70 -

S Fod oo L T e T Coaenmo

Janitorial Services : and Supphes
. :Legal and Aﬁcountmg Fees
e Misceiianeous O :

: "'ZQﬁiceSupphes : : - S Do A kDR
e :f;OthchurchasedServmes- oA o EE PSP '24931:6‘" '

_7_4635;'-

i ].2 516[
e

. 87,‘&2@ L

gl
TR - /... I
L . ‘-._-213178{):

Adm,_ ‘tratWeFee(ZS%) IR o
TotalExpenses . o S _ S _j,2,664_,725:'

o Excess af Revenues and Other Fmancing S:mrces

OverExpenses - ' . oo | $. - .25,936

8

a5

532045



SOUTHWEST ARKANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.
- - SCHEDULE OF REVENIJFS AND EXPENSES _
I—IORIZ{)N MENTAL HEALTH I‘REATMENT PRGGRAM
L YEAR ENDED JUNE; 39, 2018

Revenues and Otbe,rlﬁ‘mancingSources UL B
ServxceFees Lo . o L e $ 2129433 -

'I‘otal Revenues and Otller Fmancmg Suurces T T R -'2,:129,#33' :

Expenses : L U T - : _ : : S
:AutoExpense BT : N o 55580
C BadDebtExpense oo 2315600
--'ChentMedlca}Expense SRR RS o L L 24997 o
Clinical Supplies . _ i : S 94 _
. Conference andRegistration o L o360
_%if,DataPmcessmg o : : C S 120001 e
- .Depreciation : S s Ie
' fi'DrugExpenscs RN e Sl 2838
::;:.;Duesandl’ubhca_t_l_ons SR S N e B
CUFeod o o 3R
CRdngeBemefits o 16508
oo Ipsurance. . o e e i RIS 27456
_'_‘;::éJamtonaiServmesandSupphes S S F TR E R o [ S
- f:?ffLega]andAccountmg e SR TR Sk I PRI EERT Y |« v/ AEE
L Mseeffameous . o T e e ]3 CL039
;-OfﬁceSupphes o T T TR 23305_5?-'_*_

i, _asePayments - i e e T e T e A0
Rep__u‘sandMamtenance S R ERUUN S T 3. 1. S
" Salaries - SR - . 920706
- Small Fufnifure and Fxxtures Lo : L L 626
L ;Telephoue : R - A R :_39,370" g
S Travel - o . o _ : 13504
COrUilites o 0 s L e S 5R819
: '?TntaiExpenses S R E R P o '1662 855 :

OVérExpenses e : R . S 466,578 R

29



SOUTH'WEST ARKANSAS COUN SELING AND MENTAL HEALTI—I CENTER, INC.

'SCHEDULE OF REVFNUFS AND. EXPENSES

RIVER RIDGE RESIDENTIAL SUBSTAN CE ABUSE TREATMENT PROGRAM

YEAR ENDED JUNE 3(} 2018

Revennes and Other Fmancing Saurces
Servxce Feses and Other ReVenue Lo

o ;Tdtaliiﬂ@gnﬁés -al_idi '(}ﬂiélj" Finéncing:fSoilrées .

Expenses - =
- -Auto Expense :
. Bad Debt Expense '
*Client Medical Expense :
" Client Transportatlon _
* Conference and Regxstratlon
Data: Processmg
; Deprematmn '
-'.f;fDrugEXpense o
_}’Dues and Pubhcatlons -

i :' Legai and Accountmg Fses
' E:*'iMmceHaneous :
A -Ofﬁce Supphes '
B 3“-;;;0therPurchased Servlces o

_;"::RentwLease Payments o
L ;’Repalrs aml Mamtenance S
.. Salarjes . T o
e 'Small Fumiture and Apphancas
: Telephom: o o
. - Travel .
. Uies

e

Deﬁcﬁ of Revenues and .ther Fmancmg Sourrces -

‘Over Expenses

30

8§

626413

66413

34167

Com
325 - -

5,054
. 20 644

2217

500

| '_4,‘5,.47'_5. )
722400

6,610
17787

1,251
182

R v T
AR5
el

490

22

218

1,308,365
11,613

- 5,185

: 28,509

654894

$ (28481
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' :SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND UNITS OF. SERVICE -
. BUDGET AND ACTUAL o :



Expenses

SOUTHWEST AT

KANSAS COUNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND. UNITS OF &ERVICE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH: SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

' YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fedaral Refvenue

Total Revellues and Other Flnancmg Sources

_ Salarles CSP o
Saiarles CASSP

TolBxponses

L zExcess of Revenues and ()ther Fmancmg Sources

OverExpenses _

i Umts of Semce

31

___ Budget © Actual

$ 119552 . $ 119552

119,552 119552

85892 - 85892

33,660 - - 33,660

119,552 119553



bOUTHWEST ARKANSAS C(}UNSELING AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER INC
' SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND UNITS OF SERVICF -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CDWE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2918

~ Budget. ~ Actual

: Revennes and Oﬂwr Fmancmg Sources o PR : SR S
‘State Reverme .~ ' o % 340604 0§ 3064720 o
L TransferslnannreBmctedFunds _ O T IR R StE =) ) €

Tota!Revenu’és”and cherFmanemg Sources ' e i Coon40.604 0 . 319?539 -

Expenses : : : _ P R R :
. Conferenceandkeglstmtmn ST Gl 280 R
g --_'5_fDataProcesmng L ;_.: SR S Sl e s Dol e B0 e T

'Depremat}on LE e T L7200 . 1852

s ___.:Duesand ":ubhcatlons S S e e 560
CocBeod s A e e e AT
BringeBenefs . somo 47839

Clmmmme g0 3984
:ﬁg:Jamtonal_SemcesandSupphesi B ]| FE . | S
Lﬂgalaﬁd'AW%ﬂfmg L o G LT 1000 = R
..cnﬁceSupphes FENRE - G e _2500 635
g .f:Recruiﬁnentzand'Trammg o R 100 o358

'Rent - Lease Payments - s L (X5 _ 12654

Repeirs ond Mainternce : o 00 o 382

ifllaien £ e ams o 2mam0

"-:53‘Smaﬂ‘fﬂmimandApphances | J AR ST §

o Telephone . Lo TR ' o S 94ss 747

. _'9=',I~‘:r_avé'15-..-'--_: ST Tk Lo 1882 o 13,861

. .;Utiht;les T n o R 950 B B 868 L
e E3It1d1rect(losts R L 3a006

-32'-'T“‘““*E*Pmes 340604 319,589

Excess nf Revenues and Other Fmancing Sour\ces I S
()verExpenses ; : S - R

Unitsof Serviee. -~ o N . N/A

Ty
E

32
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